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Issue of 18,00,00,000 (Eighteen Crore) Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) aggregating up to Rs. 18,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Eighteen Crores Only) ou a private placement basis (the “Issue”).

Background

This Information Memorandum is being issued in respect of the Debentures to be issued by Spandana
Sphoorty Financial Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company™) on a private placement basis and contains
relevant information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing and allotting of the
Debentures. The issue of the Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this Information
Memorandum has been authorised by the Issuer through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Issuer on August 04, 201 7and the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors resolution dated 17" October,
2017 read with the resolution passed by the Management Commiltee of the Board dated 18" October, 2017and
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the
resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders dated August 04, 2017 in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company has been authorised to borrow by way of issuance of non-
convertible debentures and upon such terms and conditions as the Board may think fit, for amounts up
to INR 1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only)for a period of one year from the date
of the resolution. The present issue of NCDs in terms of this Information Memorandum is within the
overall powers of the Board as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

Credit Rating

The Debentures proposed to be issued by the Issuer have been rated by [CRA (“Rating Agency”). The
Rating Agency has vide its letter dated July 28, 2017assigned a rating of “lICRABBB- (pronounced as
ICRABBB minus)in respect of the Debentures. The above rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold securities and investors should take their own decision. The ratings may be subject to revision
or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency and should be evaluated independently of any other
ratings. Please refer to Annexure 11 of this Information Memorandum for the Rating Agency
assigning the credit rating abovementioned and disclosing the rating rationale adopted for the
aforesaid rating. '

Issue Schedule

Heads
Issue Opens on | Oclober 25,2017 |
Issue Closes on October 26. 2017
Deemed Date ol Allotment Oclober 26, 2017
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The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at
its sole discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription
during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

This Information Memorandum for private placement of the Debentures is neither a prospectus
nor a statement in lieu of prospectus and does not constitute an offer to the public generally to
subscribe for or otherwise acquire the debt securities to be issued by the Company. This is only
an information brochure intended for private use.

Sole Arrangers Registrar & Transfer Agent Debenture Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari

[FMR Capital Finance Pvt. Ltd.

Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd
[0th Floor-Phase |, MT-Madras o ory -omputershare tvt Lid,

Address: Karvy Selenium Tower B,

Research Park, Kanagam Village. Plot 31-32. Gachibowli Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune - 411
Tharamani, Chennai- 600 113 Financial District, Nanakramguda, 038

Contact Person: Ms. Bama Hyderabad — 500 032

Balakrishnan Phone No. 040-67161700

Tel: +91-44-6668 7000

Fax: +91-44-6668 7010

Email: contact.capital@ifmr.co.in
Website: http://capital.ifinr.co.in
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given below in
this Information Memorandum. Any capitalized terins used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
given Lo them in the DTD.

Act

Allot/Allolment/Allotted

Application Form

Mecans the Companies Act, 2013 ("2013 Act"), and tor any matters
or alfairs prior to the nolification of the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies Act, 1956 ("1956 Act"), and
shall include any re-enactment, amendment or modification of the

Companies Act, 2013, as in effect from time Lo time. _
Unless the context otherwise requires or implies, the allotment of
the Debentures, pursuant to the Issue.

The form used by the recipient of the Disclosure Documents, to
apply for subscription to the Debentureswhich is in the form
annexed to this Information Memorandum and marked as
Annexure [V.

Application Money

Applicant

TppTicable Law

Means the subscription monies paid by the Debenture Holders at
the time of submitting the Application Form.

Means a person who has submitted a completed Application Form
to the Company.

Includes all applicable statutes, enactments or acts of any
lcgislative body in India, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws,
regulations,  notifications, guidelines, policies, directions,
directives and orders of any Governmental Authorily and any
modifications or re-enactments thereof.

| Assets

Means, for any date of determination, the assets of the Company
on such date as the same would be determined in accordance with
Indian GAAP.

Beneficial Owner(s)

Means the holder(s) of the Debenturesin dematerialized form
whose name is recorded as such with the Depository in the
Register of Beneficial Owners,

Board/Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the ljs;uer_

BSE

Means BSE Limited

Business Day

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Meansa day (other than a public holiday or a Sunday) on which
_banks are normally open for business in Mumbai, India. |
Means the capital adequacy ratio as defined under the NBFC
Directions.

Charged Receivables

Has the meaning given to it in Section 5.22

Crore

Ten Million

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CITES

Means the Convention on International Trade in Endangered
Species or Wild Fauna and Flora, including the protected flora and
faunae as demonstrated on the website: www.cites.org,

Client Loan

Means each loan made by the Company as a lender including
managed portfolio.

Constitutional Documents

Means the certilicate of incorporation of the Company,
memorandum of association of the Company, articles of
association of the Company and the certificate of registration

issued by the RBI to the Company.

CERSAI

i (‘ond__iLTons Precedent

_Conditions Subsequent
Debentures / NCDs

| Security Interest of India.
| Means the conditions set out in Section 5.22,

means Cenlral Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and

Means the conditions set out in Section 5.22. ]
180,000,000  (Lighteen  Crore) Rated, Senior, Secured,
Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Converlible Debenlures of face value
ol Re. I/~ (Rupees Onc only) cach aggregating up (o Rs.
18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Only)
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| Debenture Holders / Investors The holders of the Debenturesissued by the Issuer and shall |
include the registered transferees of the Debenturcstrom time to
time and the Benelicial Owners..

Deemed Dale of Allotment October 26, 2017 |
Debenture “frust cum mortgage | means the respective debenture trust cum mortgage deed executed
Deed or DTD or to be executed by and between the [ssuer and the Debenture

Trustee which sets out the terms upon which the Debentures e are
being issued and includes the representations, warranties and
covenants being provided by the [ssuer.
Debenture Trustee Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 7 B
Debenture Trustec Agreement means the respective Agreement execuled or to be executed by and
between the Debenture Trustee and the Company for the purposes
of appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee
in connection with the issuance of the Debentures. |
Demat Refers to dematerialized securities which are securities that are in
electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries noted by
the Depository.
Depositories Act - The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time |
Depository Means the depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI
(Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996, as amended from
time to time, with whom the Company has made arrangements for
dematerialising the Debentures, being CDSL and NSDL.

Depository Participant / DP A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Ael. |
Director(s) Director(s) of the Issuer.
| Disclosure Documents Mean collectively, the Information Memorandum and the Private

Placement Ofter Letter _

Information Memorandum This document which sets out the information regamg—tﬁ
Debentures being issued on a private placement basis.

DP ID Depository Pacticipant Ldentification Number.

Due Date Means the date on which any interest or liquidated damages, any

Redemption Payment or premature redemption amount and/or any
other monies payable, are due and payable B

Eligible Investors Shall have the meaning specified in Section 8. [4below

Equity Means the total equily of the Company, including shareholder's
equity, reserves, retained earnings or losses and current year
L . accumulated Net Income or loss but excluding Subordinated Debt.

Event of Default Means the events set out in Section 6.4.
Exclusion List Means any activity including (a) production or trade in any product
or activity deemed illegal under host country laws or regulations or
international  conventions and agreements, or subject to
international bans, such as pharmaceuticals, pesticides/herbicides,
ozone depleting substances, PCBs, wildlife or products regulated
under CITES, (b) production or trade in weapons and munitions,
(¢) production or trade in alcoholic beverages (excluding beer and
wine), (d) production or trade in tobacco, (e) gambling, casinos
and equivalent enterprises, () production or trade in radioactive
materials (this does not apply to the purchase of medical
equipment, quality control (measurement) equipment), (g)
production or trade in unbonded asbestos fibers (this does not
apply to purchase and use of bonded asbestos cement sheeting
where the asbestos content is less than 20%), (h) drift net fishing in
the marine environment using nets in excess of 2.3 km. in length,
(1) production or activitics involving harmful or exploitative forms
of forced labor, or harmful child labor, (j) production, trade,
storage, or t(ransport of significant volumes of hazardous
chemicals, or commercial scale usage of hazardous chemicals
(hazardous chemicals include gasoline, kerosene, and other
petroleum products), (k) production or activities that impinge on
the lands owned, or claimed under adjudication. by indigenous |

ih
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EFT

peoples, without full documented consent of such peoples, (l)l
which may result in funding or supporting any individual or
organisation designated as: (i) terrorists or terrorist organizations
by the United Nations, the European Union and any other
applicable country; (ii) persons, groups or entities which are
subject to United Nations, European Union and the US Oftice of
Foreign Asset Control {(OFAC) sanctions.

Electronic Fund Transfer

Financial Year/FY

LEach 12 (twelve) month period commehzing, from April 1 of a
particular calendar year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent
calendar year.

Final Settlement Date

Means the date on which all obligations of the have been |
irrevocably and unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the
satisfaction of the Debenture Holders.

Governmental Authority

Shall mean any government (central, stale or otherwise) or any
governmental agency, semi-governmental ov judicial or quasi-
Judicial or administrative entity, department or authority, agency or
authority including any slock exchange or any self-regulatory
organization, established under any Applicable Law.

Gross Loan Portfolio

Means and includes the outstanding principal amount of all Client
Loans originated by the Company on its own books and the Off
Balance Sheet Portfolio.

Indebtedness

Indian GAAP

Means any obligation of the Company (whether incurred as
principal, independent guarantor or as a surety) (or the payment or
repayment of borrowed money, whether present or future, actual or
contingent.

Shall mean the gene;al_ly accepted accounting principles as |
prescribed by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India [rom
time to time and consistently applied by the Company.

Interest Rate

Means 12.30% (Twelve Decimal Point Three Zero Percent) per
annum.

INR

Indian Rupees

Interest Payment Date

[ssue

Means the payment dates as specified in Annexure VI, unless such
day is not a Business Day, in which case the payment date will be
the next Business Day.

Private Placement of the Debentures.

Issue Closing Date

October 26, 2017

[ssue Opening Date

October 23, 2017

Issucr/ Company

Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited

Information Memorandum

Means this information memorandum.

Liability

Loan Agreuﬁent

LODR Regulations

Listing Related Covenants

Means, for any date of determination, the liabilities of the
Company on such date as the same would be determined in
accordance with the Indian GAAP at such date.

Means the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Has the meaning given to it in Section 5.22.

[.oan

MZi_iority Debenture Holders

Means an assistance by way of a rupee loan, lent and advanced by
the Company to an Obligor pursuant to a Loan Agreement and
"Loans" shall mean the aggregate of all such loans lent and
advanced by the Company to the Obligors.

Means an agreement entered into between the Company and an
Obligor (as amended, modified and altered from time to time)
setting out the terms and conditions on which the Company has
agreed to lend and advance a Loan to the Obligor, and "Loan
| Agreements” shall mean all such agreements collectively

Means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding

more than 50% (Fifty percent) of the value of the Outstanding

6
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Majorily Resolution

Princﬂwaﬂinmunts ol the Debentures.

Means a resolution approved by such number of Debenture
Holders that represent more than 50% (Fifty percent) of the value
of the Outstanding Principal Amounts ol the Debentures held by
the Debenture Holders who are present and voting or if a poll is
demanded, by such number of Debenture Holders that represent
more than 50% ([ifty percent) ol the value of the Outslanding
Principal Amounts of the Debentures held by the Debenture
Holders who are present and voting in such poll.

Material Adverse E(fect

Shall mean the effect or consequence of an event, circumstance,
occurrence or condition which has caused, as of any date of
determination, a material and adverse effect:

(a) on the rights or remedies of the Debenture Trustee acting
for the benefit of the Debenture Holders hereunder or under any
other Transaction Document; or

(b) on the ability of the Company to perform its obligations
under the Transaction Documents; or
(c) on the validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction

Documents (including the ability of any party to enforce any of its
remedies thereunder):

_Maturily Date

Means the date occurring on the expiry of a period of 36 (Seventy
Four) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment being the
dateOctober 26, 2020;

N.A

Not Applicable

NBFC

Non-banking financial company

NBFC Directions

Means the Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-
Deposit Accepling or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and/or the Non-Systemically
Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepling or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 (each as amended, modified or restated from time to time) as
may be applicable, read together with the Master Circular on
"Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Finance Institutions'
(NBFC-MFIs) — Direction” issued by the RBI (as amended,
modified or restated from time to time).

Net Worth has the meaning ascribed to it in the 2013 Act
| NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

Obligations Means all present and future obligations (whether actual or
contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or in any
capacily whatsoever) obligations of the Company to the Debenture
Holders or the Debenture Trustee under the Transaction
Documents, including without limitation, all costs, charges,
expenses and other monies payable by the Company in respect of
the Debentures. o

Obligor Means a Person who has availed of a Loan [rom the Company

under the terms and conditions set out in the respective Loan
Agreement entered into between such Person and the Company,
and who is liable to pay the amounts due to the Company, and
"Obligors" shall mean all such Persons collectively.

Off Balance Sheet Portfolio

Means the oulstanding principal balance of all Client Loans
securitized, assigned, originated on behalf of other institutions
otherwise sold olT in regpect of which the Company has provided
credit enhancements in any form or manner whatsoever including |
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Client Loans originated on behalf of other entities by entefﬁg?nto
partnership agreements but not included on the Company's own
book. excluding interest receivables and accrued interest.

Outstanding Principal Amount Means, at any date, the principal amounts outstanding under the |
Debentures.
Outstanding Amounts Means, at any date, the Outstanding Principal Amounts together

with any accrued interest, additional interests, costs, fees, charges,
and other amounts payable by the Company in respect of the
- L Debentures.

Portfolio At Risk Over 90 Days Shall mean the outstanding principal amounts of all Client Loans
that have one or more instalments of principal, interest payments
overdue for 90 days or more and includes restructured loans but
excludes loans that have been written oft' by the Company

PAR Ratio Over 90 Days shall mean, the result obtained by dividing Portfolio at Risk Over
90 Days by Gross Loan Portfolio

Payment Default Shall mean any event, acl or condition which, with notice or lapse
of time, or both, would constilute an Evenl of Defaull under
Section 6.4(1).

PAN Permanent Account Number.

Person Shall mean any individual, partnership, joinl venture, firm,
corporation, association, limited liability company, trust or other
enterprise or any government or political subdivision or any
agency, department or instrumentality thereol |
Private Placement Offer Letter Shall mean the offer letter prepared in compliance with Seclion 42
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companics (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securilies) Rules, 2014.

Promoters MeanMs G. Padmaja Reddy.
Purpose Has the meaning given to it in Section 5.22.
Principal Payment Dates 1 Means each of the Due Dates on which the Redemption Payments |

have to be made including the Malurity Date, unless such day is
not a Business Day, in which case the payment date will be the
preceding Business Day.

Quarterly Date Means each of March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 3 |
and "Quarterly Dates" shall be construed accordingly

RBIL L | Reserve Bank of India. o ]

Rating Agency [CRA Limited, a company incorporated under the pro?i_s_ions ol the

Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at 1105,
Kailash Building, 11th Floor, 26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New
Delhi - 110 001

Redemption Payment Means the payment of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of the
Debentures on each of the Principal Payment Dates or on any other
date due to premature redemption in accordance with the
Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

Register of Beneflicial Owners Means  the register of  beneficial owners ol the
Debenturesmaintained in the records of the NSDL or CDSL, as the
case may be.

_Register of Debenture Holders Means the register maintained b_y the Company in accordance with
Section 88 of the Acl.
Registrar Shall mean the registrar and transfer agent appointed for the issue
B | of Debentures, being Karvy Computershare Privale Limited.
Record Dale The date which will be used for determining the Debenture

Holders who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any
Due Date, which shall be the date falling 3(Three) Business Days
B prior to any Due Date.

R&T Agent Registrar and Transfer Agent to the [ssue, in this casc being Karvy
Computershare Private Limited.
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SEBI Debt Listing Regulations

[ ROC - Registrar of Companies.
Rs./ INR Indian National Rupee.
RTGS B . Real Time Gross Settlement.
SEBI

| The Securities and Exchange Board of India (fsgtle and Listing of |

Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the |
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended
from time to time).

Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 issued by SEBI, as amended
from time to time.

Special Debenture

Holders

Majority

Means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding
more than 75% (seventy five percent) of the value of the
Oulstanding Principal Amounts of the Debentures.

Special Resolution

Means a resolution approved by such number of Debenture
Holders that represent more than 75% (seventy five percent) of the
value of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of the Debentures
held by the Debenture Holders who are present and voting or if a
poll is demanded, by such number of Debenture Holders that
represent more than 75% (seventy five percent) of the value of the
Outstanding Principal Amounts of the Debenturesheld by the
Debenture Holders who are present and voting in such poll.

Subordinated Debt

Means all funds received by the Company on un-secured basis that
rank lower in repayment to other debts, but is senior to equity and
that may be accounted for as "Tier [ Capital”.

Tax

Means any present or future tax, levy, duty, charge, fees,
deductions, withholdings, surcharges, cess, turnover lax,
transaction tax, stamp tax or other charge of a similar nature
(including any penalty or interest payable on account of any failure
to pay or delay in paying the same), now or herealter imposed by
Law by any Governmental Authority and as maybe applicable in
relation to the payment obligations of the Company under the
Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

Tax Deduction

means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a
payment under a Transaction Document pursuant to Applicable
Law.

Tier 11 Capital

has the meaning ascribed to it in the NBFC Directions.

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

| Company on such date.

means, for any date of determination, the total Assets of the

means, for any date of delermination, the total Liabilities of the
Company on such date.

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source.

Total Assets

Means, for any date of determination, the total Assets of the
Company on such date

Terms & Conditions

Shall mean the terms and conditions pertaining to the I[ssue as
outlined in the Transaction Documents

Transaction Documents

has the meaning ascribed to the term in Section6.! below

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market.

Wilful Defaulter

Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by
any Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and includes an issuer whose director or
promoter is categorized as such in accordance with Regulation
2(n) of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,

2008.

9
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS
2.1 ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu ol a prospectus and should not be
construed to be a prospectus or a statement in licu of a prospectus under the Companies Act. The issuc ol the
Debentures is being made strictly on a private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity
shall be deemed to be given to the same person and shall be treated as such. This Information Memorandum
does not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures Lo
the public in general.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Information Memorandum to be filed or
submitted to the ROC or SEBI for its review and/or approval.However pursuant to the provisions of Section 42
of the Act read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the copy of the
Private Placement Ofter Letter shall be filed with the ROC and SEBI (if required) within the stipulated
timelines under the Act.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared solely to provide general information about the [ssucrto the
Eligible Investors (as defined below) to whom it is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to
the Debentures. This Intormation Memorandum does not purport to contain all the information that any Eligible
Investor may require. Further, this Information Memorandum has been prepared for informational purposes
relating to this transaction only and upon the express understanding that it will be used only tor the purposes set
forth herein.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplicd in connection with the Debentures is
intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this Information
Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any Debentures. Each
potential fnvestor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own independent investigation
of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the [ssuer.
Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors as to the risks
and investment considerations arising from an investment in the Debentures and should possess the appropriate
resources to analyze such investment and the suitability of such investment to such Investor’s particular
circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of the Issue
and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects. No person has
been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or incorporated by
reference in this Information Memorandum or in any material made available by the Issuer to any potential
Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as
having being authorized by the [ssuer. The Issuer certifies that the disclosures made in this Disclosure
Documents are in accordance with Applicable Law. Further, the [ssuer accepts no responsibility for statements
made otherwise than in the Disclosure Documents or any other material issued by or at the instance of the
[ssuer and anyone placing teliance on any source of information other than Disclosure Documents would be
doing so at its own risk.

This Information Memorandum, the Private Placement Offer Letter and the contents hercof are
restricted only for the intended recipient(s) who have been addressed directly and specifically through a
communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are eligible to apply for the Debentures. All
Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing
iu this Issue. The contents of this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter
are intended to be used only by those Investors to whom it is distributed. It is not intended for
distribution to any other person and should not be reproduced by the recipient.

No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along with this
Information Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer Letterbeing issued have been sent. Any application
by a person to whom the lnformation Memorandum and/ov the Private Placement Offer Letter has not been sent
by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.
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The person who is in receipt ol this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letler shall
nol reproduce or distribute in whole or part or make any announcement in public or (o a third party regarding
the contents hereol without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep confidential all information
provided (or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the existence and lerms of the Issue, any
specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or terms of any fees payable to us or other parlies
in connection with the [ssue. This Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter may not
be photocopied, reproduced, or distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the [ssuer.
Upon request, the recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including this
Information Memorandum) without retaining any copies hereof. If any rvecipient of this Information
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter decides not to participate in the [ssue, that recipicnt
muslt promplly return this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter and all
reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other information, statement, notice, opinion, memorandum,
expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in connection with the Issue
to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer
Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement
Offer Letter and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events without first
confirming its accuracy with the [ssuer.

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum, and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter nor any sale
of Debentures made hereafter shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute, nor may it be
used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or
solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No
action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of this [nformation
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Letter in any jurisdiction where such action is required.
Persons into whose possession this Information Memorandum comes are required to inform themselves about
and to observe any such restrictions. The Information Memorandum is made available to potential Investors in
the Issue on the strict understanding that it is confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

This Information Memorandum has not been reviewed, cleared, or approved by any stock exchange nor does
the stock exchange in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the
contents of this Information Memorandum, nor does the stock exchange warrant that the Issuer’s Debentures
will be listed or will continue to be listed on the stock exchange; nor does the stock exchange take any
responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Issucr, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of the Issuer.

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

It is to be distinctly understood that this Information Memorandum should not in any way be decmed or
construed to have been approved or vetted by SEBI and that this Issue is not recommended or approved by
SEBI. SEBI does not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for which the
Debentures issued thereof is proposed to be made or for the correctness ol the statements made or opinions
expressed in this Information Memorandum.

24 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OTI RBI

The Issuer is having a valid certificate of registration dated November 6, 2013 issued by the Reserve Bank of
India under Section 45-[A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the RBI does not aceept any
responsibility or guarantee about the present position as to the linancial soundness of the Issuer or the
correctness of any of the statements or representations made or opinion expressed by the Issuer and for
repayment of deposits/discharge of liabilities by the Issuer.
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2. DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

wm

This Issue is made in India to Investors as specilied under the clause titled “Eligible Investors” of this
Information Memorandum, who shall be/have been identified upfiront by the Issuer. This Information
Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer Lelter does not constilute an offer to sell or an invitation to
subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it ts not specifically addressed. Any dispules
arising out of this Issue will be subject to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and tribunals at Chennai,
India. This Information Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute an offer to sell
or an invitation to subscribe to the Debentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.6 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the
concerned bank facilitics or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agency has based its ratings on
information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating Agency does not,
however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any
errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose bank
facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and
type of bank facilities/instruments.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with (he Depositories
for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. [nvestors will have to hold the Debentures in
dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The [ssuer shall take necessary steps to credit the
Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor with its depositary participant. The
Issuer will make the Allotment o Investors on the Deemed Date of Allotment alter verification of the
Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation of the application money.




Information Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: October 25,2017 For Private Circulation Only
(This Information Memorandunt is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged by the
management of the Company. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors stated in (his
Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer Lelter for evaluating the Company and its
business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures. The Company
believes that the risk factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the
Debentures, but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the Debenlures are
exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not
in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. Potential Investors should also read the
detailed information set out elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and/or the Privale Placement Offer
Letter and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

3.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER..

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount(i.e. the redemption amount) and any
other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the Issuer. Potential
Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations under the Debentures. [n the
event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme ol arrangement or similar proceedings to avert
bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums due on the Debentures may not be made
or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

3.2 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if there is a
secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity. Potential Investors may
have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

3.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration in the
financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Rating Agency may downgrade the rating of the
Debentures. In such cases, potential Investors may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or make
provisions towards sub-standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

3.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF DEBENTURES.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is olfered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The price of
such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise, prices
of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the
prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of
prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing
economy, are likely (o have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

35 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types ol investors. Potential Investors
are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any financial, legal, tax
and other implications of this investment.

3.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential investors are urged to
consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

3.7 SECURITY MAYBE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES
In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors under the

terms of the Debentures, the Debenture ‘[rustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of security
documents, and other related documents. The Debenture Holder(s)’ recovery in relation (o the Debentures will
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be subject to (i) the market value ol such secured propetrty, (ii) finding willing buyers (or the Security at a price
sufficient to repay the Debenture Holder(s) amounts outstanding under the Debentures. The value realised from
the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

3.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations and
policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect the
profitability of the fssuer or its future linancial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its activities,
increasing costs or otherwise.

3.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness ol the acquisition of the Debentures,
whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it operates or for
compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable to it.

3.10 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from lhe domeslic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the I[ndian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand [or credit
and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or negative growth
of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its performance. Any such
slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations and ftinancial condition.

3.1 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

(a) Majority of the Issuer’s loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are of the
liigh risk category and if the Issuer is unable to control the level of nou-performing loans (“NPAs”)
in the future, or if the Issuer’s loan loss reserves are insufficient to cover future loan losses, the
Sinancial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

A majority of the Issuer’s loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are of the high
risk category. There is uncertainty on the client’s ability to fulfil its loan obligations as MFI clients
typically do not have bank accounts or proper income proof verification so it can be difficult to verify
all client details and assess the risk. Such non-performing or low credit quality loans can negatively
impact our results of operations.

The [ssuer has various procedures and process controls in place to mitigate the risk. All group lending
loans are provided under the Grameen Model and based on the joint liability of the group.

As at September 30, 2017, the gross NPA was 870.83 crores on a gross portfolio of Rs. 2973.88
crores.

The Issuer cannot assure that it will be able to effectively control and reduce the level of the NPAs of
its Client Loans. The amount of its reported NPAs may increase in the future as a result of growth of
Client Loans, and also due to factors beyond ils control, such as over-extended member credit that it is
unaware of. If the Issuer is unable to manage our NPAs or adequately recover its loans, the results of
its operations will be adversely affected.

The current loan loss reserves ol the Issuer imay not be adequate lo cover an increase in the amount of
NPAs or any future deterioration in the overall credit quality ol Client Loans. As a result, if the quality
of its total loan portfolio deteriorates the Issuer may be required to increase its loan loss reserves,
which will adversely affect its financial condition and results of opcrations.
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(b)

(©)

(d)
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The members are poor and, as a result, might be vulnerable if economic conditions worsen or growth
rates decelerate in India, or il there are natural disasters such as floods and droughts in areas where the
[ssuer’s members live. Moreover, there is no precise method for predicting loan and credit losses, and
the Issuer cannot assure that il’s monitoring and risk management procedures will effectively predict
such losses or that loan loss reserves will be sutlicient to cover actual losses. [t the Issuer are unable to
control or reduce the level of its NPAs or poor credit quality loans, it’s financial condition and results
of its operations could be materially and adversely alfected.

The Issuer’s business operates through a large number of rural and semi urban branclies and is
exposed to operational risks including fraud

The [ssueris exposed to operational risks, including fraud, petty thelt and embezzlement, as it handles
a large amount of cash due to high volume of small transactions. This could harm its operations and its
financial position.

As the Issuer handles a large amount of cash through a high volume of small transactions taking place
in its network, the Issuer is exposed to the risk of fraud or other misconduct by its employees or
outsiders. These risks are further compounded due to the high level of delegation of power and
responsibilities that the Issuer’s business model requires. Given the high volume of transaclions
processed by the Issuer, certain instances of fraud and misconduct may go unnoticed before they are
discovered and successlully rectified. Even when the [ssuer discovers such instances of fraud or theft
and pursue them to the full extent of the law or with its insurance carriers, there can be no assurance
that the Issuer will recover any such amounts. In addition, the Issuer’s dependence upon automated
systems to record and process transactions may further increase the risk that technical system flaws or
employee tampering or manipulation of those systems will result in losses hat are_ditficult to detect.

The lIssuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the operations team follows the defined
procedures and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management team. The Issuer also
has a strong MIS system that has a wide range of data that can be used to monitor financial and
operational performance.

To mitigate the above risk, the [ssuer maintains an internal audit process lo ensure the operations team
follows the defined procedures and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management
team. The Issuer also has a MIS system able to generale data analysis that can be used to monitor
financial and operational performance.

Loans due within two years account for almost all of the Issuer’s interest income, and a significant
reduction in short term loans may result in a corresponding decrease in its interest income

All of the loans the [ssuer issues are due within approximately two years of disbursement. The
relatively short-term nature of the Issuer’s loans means that the Issuer’s long-term interest income
stream is less certain than if a portion of its loans were for a longer term. In addition, the lssuer’s
customers may not obtain new loans trom the Issuer upon maturity of their existing loans, particularly
i[ competilion increases. The potential instability of the Issuer’s interest income could materially and
adversely affect the Issuer’s results of operations and financial position.

The loans given by the [ssuer are at fixed interest rate, and the tenor of the underlying assel has
increased from one year lo two year which has provided stability to the portfolio and interest income
and has also smoothened the operating expense.

The Issuer is exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks

Due to the nature of its operations, the Issuer is exposed to political, regulatory and concentration
risks. The Issuer believes a mitigant to this is to expand its geographical reach and may consequently
expand its operations to other states. If it is not effectively able to manage such operations and
expansion, it may lose money invested in such expansion, which could adversely affect its business
and results of operations.

Large scale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficult for the Issuer to
manage ils business.

If the Issuer is not able to attract, motivale, integrate or retain qualified personnel at levels of
experience that are necessary to maintain the Issuer’s quality and reputation, it will be difficult for the
[ssuer to manage its business and growth. The Issuer depends on the services of its executive olficers
and key employees for its continued operalions and growth. In partticular, the Issuer’s senior
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managemen( has significant experience in the microfinance, banking and financial services industrics.
The loss of any of the Issuer’s executive ofticers, key employees or senior managers could negatively
affect its ability to execute its business strategy, including its ability to manage its rapid growth. The
Issuer’s business is also dependent on its team of personnel who directly manage its relationships with
its members. The Tssuer’s business and profits would suffer adversely if a substantial number of such
personnel left the Issuer or became ineffective in servicing its members over a period of time. The
Issuer’s future success will depend in large part on its ability to identify, attract and retain highly
skilled managerial and other personnel. Competition for individuals with such specialized knowledge
and experience is intense in this industry, and the Issuer may be unable to attract, motivate, integrate or
retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that are necessary to maintain its quality and
reputation or Lo sustain or expand its operations. The loss of the services of such personnel or the
inability to identify, attract and retain qualified personnel in the future would make it difficult for the
Issuer to manage it’s business and growth and to meet key objectives.

The Issuer’s business and results of operations would be adversely affected by strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demands by employees

The employees are not currently unionized. However, there can be no assurance that they will not
unionize in the future. If the employees unionize, it may become difficult to maintain flexible labour
policies, and could result in high labour costs, which would adversely affect the Issuer’s business and
results of operations.

The Issuer’s insurance coverage may not adequately protect it against losses. Successful claims that
exceed its insurance caverage could larm the Issuer’s resulls of operations and diminish its
Jinancial position

The [ssuer maintains insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that it believes are
commensurate with its operations and other general liability insurances. The Issuer’s insurance
policies, however, may not provide adequate coverage in certain circumstances and may be subject to
certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on coverage.

[n addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which the [ssuer doesnot maintain insurance,
such as losses due to business interruption and natural disasters, because they are either uninsurable or
because insurance is not available to the Tssuer on acceptable terms. A successful assertion of one or
more large claims against the [ssuer that exceeds it’s available insurance coverage or results in changes
in its insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger deductible or co-
insurance requirement, could adversely alfect the Issuer’s business, {inancial condition and results of
operations.

The Issuer requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting its business and tie
Sailure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect operations

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. Pursuant to guidelines
issued by the RBI (circular dated August 3, 2012 and NBFC-MFI Directions) the [ssuer is required to
maintain its status as a NBFC- MF1 in order to be eligible for categorization as priority sector advance
for bank loans. The Issuer requires certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for
operating its business, including registration with the RBI as a NBFC-MFI. Further, such approvals,
licenses, registrations and permissions must be maintained/renewed over time, applicable requirements
may change and the Issuer may not be aware of or comply with all requirements all of the time.
Additionally, the Issuer may need additional approvals from regulators to introduce new insurance and
other fee based products to its members. [n particular, the Issuer is required to obtain a certificate of
registration for carrying on business as a NBFC-MFI that is subject to numerous conditions. In
addition, its branches are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of
the states in which they are located. The shops and establishments laws regulate various employment
conditions, including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. IF the Issuer fails
to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all,
its business may be adversely affected. f the Issuer fails to comply, or a regulator claims that it has not
complied, with any ot these conditions, the Issuer’s certificate of registration may be suspended or
cancelled and it shall not be able to carry on such activities. I[ the Issuer fails to comply with the
NBFC-MFI Directions and fails to maintain the status of NBFC-MFI, it will not be eligible for priority
sector loans from the Indian banking sector and may also attract penal provisions under the RBI Act.
1934 for non-compliance.

16




Infonmation Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: October 25, 2017 For Private Circulation Only
{This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(h) Issuer may be required to increase capital ratio or amount of loan loss reserves, whicl may result in
changes to business and accounting practices that would lrarm business and results of operations.

The Issuer is subject to the RBI minimum capital to risk weighted assels ratio regulations. Pursuant to
Section 45 —1C of the RBI Act, every NBFC is required to create a reserve fund and transfer thereto a
sum not less than 20.0% of its nct profit every year, as disclosed in the profit and loss account and
before any dividend is declared. The Issuer is also required to maintain a mintmum capital adequacy
ratio ot 15.0% in relation to aggregate risk-weighted assets and risk adjusted assigned loans.

The RBI may also in the future require compliance with other financial ralios and standards.
Compliance with such regulatory requirements in the future may require alteration of its business and
accounting practices or take other actions that could materially harm its business and operating results.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 3 1.03.2017are set out in Annexure V hereto.
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SECTION5:  REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Inlormation Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing Regulations
and in this section, the Issuer has sel oul the details required as per Schedule | of the SEBI Debt Lisling
Regulalions.

5.1

5.2

[Intentionally left blank]

Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee in electronic form (soft copy)
on or before the allotment of the Debentures:

(a) Memorandum and Arlicles of Association of the Lssuer and necessary resolution(s) for the allolment of
the Debentures;

(b) Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Reports;

(c) Statement containing particulars of] dates of, and parties Lo all material contracts and agreements;

(d) Latest audited / limited review halt yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone financial
information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and auditor qualifications,
if any.

(e) An undertaking o the effect that if the Debentures are listed in accordance with the Debenture Trust
cum Mortgage Deed, the Issuer would, until the redemption of the debt securities, submit the details
mentioned in point (d) above o the Debenture Trustee within the timelines as mentioned in the
circular No. SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 dated May 11, 2009/Uniform Listing Agreement issued
by SEBI vide circular No.CIR/CFD/CMD/6/2015 dated October 13, 2015as amended from time o
time, for furnishing / publishing its half yearly/ annual result. Further, the Issuer shall within 180 (One
Hundred and Eighty) calendar days from the end of the financial year. submit a copy of the latest
annual report to the Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall be obliged to share the details
submitted under this clause with all ‘Qualified [nstitutional Buyers’ and other existing debenture-
holders within 2 (two)Business Days of their specific requesL.

5.3 Name and Address of Registered Office of the Issuer

Name: Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited

Registered Oftice of Issuer: Plot No.31 & 32, Ramky Selenium Towers, Ground Floor,

Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500032
Corporate Office: Plot No.31 & 32, Ramky Selenium Towers, Ground Floor &
Second I'loor, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500032
Compliance Officer of Issuer: Mr. Rakesh Jhinjharia

CFO of Issuer: -

Registration Number: 040648

Corporate Identification Number: U65929TG2003PLC0O40648
Phone No.: 040 - 48126666 / 44386648
Fax No : 040 —44386640

Contact Person: Mr Abdul Feroz Khan
Email: feroz@spandanaindia.com

Website of Issuer: www.spandanaindia.com
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Auditors of the [ssuer:

Trustee to the Issue:

GDA House, Plot No. 85,
Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road. Pune - 411 038

Registrar o the [ssue:

Hyderabad — 500 032

Credit Rating Agency of the [ssue:

Arranger to the Issue:
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Overview

(a)

M/s. S. R. Baltiboi & Co. LLP (E&Y)

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Karvy Computershare Private Limited,

Karvy Selenium Tower B,
Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,

ICRA Limited,
1105, Kailash Building, 1 [th Floor,
26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi - 110 001

IFMR Capital Finance Pvt. Ltd.
10th Floor-Phase |, [IT-Madras Research Park, Kanagam Village,
Taramani, Chennai- 600 |13

A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business

Spandana Sphoorty Financials Limited is an NBFC-MFI founded in 1998; the entity got classified as NBFC-
MF[ effective from 13 April, 2015. The Company is engaged in the business of micro finance; providing small
ticket unsecured loans to women of low-income households in predominantly rural areas. The tenure of these
loans is one to two years. The Company pro-vide business loans, income generation loans and loans against
gold jewellery (Gold loans ac-counts for marginal share of less than 1% of overall book). The company is based
out of Hyderabad. It is one of the early MFIls in the country and was second largest MFI in terms of asset size
before the Andhra Pradesh (AP) crisis. However, the entity got adversely impacled owing to AP ordinance and
then subsequently went into CDR. Spandana has successfully exited CDR during FY 17. Spandana is promoted
by Ms. Padmaja Reddy who is an industry veteran and was involved in social service prior to starting

Spandana.

I. Business Strategy

The entity has its operations spread across fourteen states with Madhya Pradesh accounting for highest
concentration at 22%, Karnataka for 21.5%, Odisha for 20%, , Maharashtra for 14%, Chhattisgarh for another
8% and Kerala, AP, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Goa, UP, West Bengal.

Products
Products Loan Annual Interest Upfront Tenure Repayment
Amount [nterest type Processing (months)
o rate fees |
| JLG Loans
Income generation | Up to 15,000 | 24.915% Declining 1%+ G.S.T. | 52 Bi- weckly
Loan — Abhilasha | earlier  now basis fortnightly
(1" cycle) revised to
30,000. - | - -
Income generation | Up to 36,000 | 24.915% Declining 1%+ G.S.T. | 52 Bi- weekly
Loan — Abhilasha basis fortnight
| (second cycle) | —
Income generation | Up to 40,000 | 24.915% Declining 1%+ G.S.T. | 52 Bi- weekly
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Loan — Abhilasha | and high_er for basis fbl‘fnighl
(third cycle) higher cycle

loans J»

Interim loans

Existing JLG | 4,000 to | 24.915% Declining 1%+ G.S.T. | 52 Bi- weekly
customers 12,000 basis forthight ]
| Gold Loans )
Gold loan 10,000 o | 16-21% on 1-12 Monthly
10,00,000 the basis of months
LTV  and
loan tenor |

[ndustry Overview

Indian microfinance now has 70 million borrower accounts, by-far the largest in any country across the world.
Over the last year Indian microfinance institutions that are organised as NBFC-MFIs and operaling in remote
rural areas of [ndia have emerged as effective financial intermediaries offering an alternative to the inaccessible
formal financial institutions. Most of them who received funding and growth capital from banks, have
demonstrated commendable scale, sustainabilily and impact.

Many NBFC-MFIs have received a good quantum of capital in FY 2014 in the form of both debt and equity.
Almost all NBFC-MFIs (less than INR 1000 crores ol assels under management) have been consistent in their
growth, maintaining excellent portfolio quality in FY 2015.

As a result of a crisis in the MFI industry on October 2010 in the southern state of Andhra Pradesh, the RBI set
up a committee 1o study issues and concerns in the MFI sector, which provided the Malegam Committee
Report. The Malegam Committee Report has made various operational and financial recommendations on the
microfinance sector that may have negative implications on the operating and financial performance of MFIs
including the Issuer. Some ot the recommendations made include:

i. [ncrease in regutatory restrictions on a NBFC-MFI (minimum net worth, establishing client protection
codes, increase in information technology systems and corporale governance, maintenance ol
solvency and penalty on MFT for non-compliance);

ii. State level legislations to be enacted for regulation of MFls; Maximum indebtedness of an individual

borrower; -
iti. Maximum annual income of a household qualitying for a loan from an NBFC-MFI;
iv. Maximum number of loans to an individual borrower;
v. Restrictions on the end usage of the loan for income generating purposes; and
vi. Maximum intevest rale and maximum margin over cost of funds, maximum processing fees.

Most of the recommendations made under the Malegam Commitltee Report in January 2011 have been
accepted by RBI and the RBT has issued circular dated July 20, 2012 to banks stating that bank ioans to micro
finance sector will be eligible for categorization as priority sector advance if they meet the eligibility criteria‘s
sel out in the said circular and has created a new category of NBFCs called the Non-Banking Financial
Company-Micro Finance Institution (the NBFC-MFIs). The directions issued by the RBI on August 3, 2012
have been incorporated and now form part of the NBFC-MFI Directions. The NBFC-MFI Directions have
been further modified on April 08, 2015

All non-deposit taking NBFCs (other than a company licensed uncler Section 235 of the Indian Company Act,
1956) that has not less than 85% of its net assets in the nature of —qualifying assets and has a minimum net
owned funds of Rs. 5 Crores other than the ones registered in north eastern region of the country for which net
owned [und requirement stands at Rs. 2 Crores. The existing NBFCs to be classified as NBFC-MFls will be
required to comply with the NBFC-MFI Directions w.e.f. April 01, 2012. Existing NBFCs with asset size of
more lhan Rs. 100 Crores are required to maintain a minimum CRAR of [5% from Dec 2, 2011 onwards.
Some of the key requirements of the NBFC-MTIT Directions and subsequent modifications which the Issuer is
required to comply with which will affect the business operations of the Issuer, which are:
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i.  All registered NBFCs intending to convert to NBFC-MFI must seek registration with immediate
effect and in any case not later than October 31, 2012, subject to the condition that they shall maintain
Net Owned Funds (NOF) at Rs.3 Crores by March 31, 2013 and at Rs.5 Crores by March 31, 2014,
failing which they must ensure that lending to the Microlinance sector i.c. individuals, SHGs or JLGs
which qualify for loans from MFls, will be restricted to {0 per cent of the total assets.

ii. NBFC-MF1s are required to maintain not less than 85 per cent of their net assets as Qualifying Assets.
In view of the problems being faced by NBFCs in complying with these criteria on account of their
existing portfolio, it has been decided that only the assets originated on or alter January 1, 2012 will
have to comply with the Qualifying Assets criteria. As a special dispensation, the existing assets as on
January 1, 2012 will be reckoned towards meeting both the Qualifying Assets criteria as well as the
Total Net Assets criteria.

iii. Rate ol interest on individual loans may exceed 26%, the maximum variance permitted for individual
loans between the minimum and maximum interest rate cannot exceed 4 per cent.

iv. Maintain margin cap of 10% for NBFC- MFls with assets more than INR 100 Crores and 12% (or
NBFC-MFIs with assets less than INR [00 Crores

V. NBFC-MFIs are also required to ensure that the aggregate amount ol loans given lor income
generation is not less than 50 per cent of the total loans extended.

Vi. NBFI[ MFIs will have to ensure compliance with, among others, conditions relating to annual
household income levels Rs. 100,000/- for rural and Rs. 160,000/~ for urban and semi urban
households, total indebtedness not to exceed Rs. 100,000/- membership of SHG/JL.G, borrowing
sources as well as percentage of qualifying assets and percentage of income generating assets

vii. Maintain fair practices in lending as stated in the NBFC-MT1 Directions;

viil. Ensure that it has a code of conduct and systems are in place for supervision of field staff such that
non- coercive methods for recovery are used;

iX. Ensure corporate governance norms are adopted and there is improvement in efficiency,
information technologies etc.; and submit statutory auditors certificate with reference to the position
of the company as at end of the financial year ended March 31, every year which should also
indicate that the company fulfils all conditions stipulated to be classified as an NBFC-MFL.

(b) Corporate Structure

i Vision and Mission:

The Issuer’s mission is: “To be one of the most significant microlinance service provider by offering a range
of financial and non-financial products and services to low income households and individuals to improve the
quality of life”.

ii. Current Corporate Status:

The [ssuer was incorporated as a public limited company and is currently registered as a NBFC-MFI with the
RBI. The Issuer derives the [ollowing benefits of being registered as an NBFC-MFI:

e Access to Funds: Commercial lenders have greater comfort lending to a regulated NBFC-MFI with
transparent ownership. As an Issuer, Spandana can raise equity and offer commercial returns.

e Diverse Funding Sources: An NBFC-MFI can access commercial investors and international capital
markets, diversifying away from donors or members as equity funders.

e Commercialisation: Classifying Spandana as an NBFC - MFI[ increases its commercial credibility and
integrates it and its clients into the formal financial sector which ultimately increases its outreach
potential.

e Mainstream Resources: As a lor-profit commercial NBFC- MFI, Spandana will be more likely to
attract mainstream capital resources which Societies or Trusts would find difficult to aftract.
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e Regulatory Coverage: As Spandana grows in size, operating as an NBFC within the regulatory
framework mitigates risks from political and regulatory intervention.

e Stakeholder Involvement: As an NBFC-MFI, Spandana can bring a variety of stakeholders to the
table, including clients, management, employees and investors.
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Brief Profile of the Board of Directors

Board Of Dir_pctors_
| Experience

"Na_mc [ Desi gnaﬁon

| Ms. 7Pﬁmaja Managing Director

Gangireddy

» Started her career with an NGO and has over 18 years of experience
in the Microfinance industry

+ Winner of the “Outstanding Woman Leadership Award” tor the
year 2016, by Golden Globe Tigers Summit, Malaysia

¢ Has a graduate degree in Communication & Journalism along with
MBA from Nagarjuna University and a degree in Microfinance from
Harvard Business School

Mr, Sunish
Sharma

Nominee Director Prior to joining Spandana, Sunish co-founded Kedaara Capital
Advisors team. [n the year 2004, he worked as a Managing Director
for General Atlantic, a global private equity firm. He was a senior
member of the India Investment team and invested in technology,
financial services, consumer and pharmaceutical businesses. In the
year 2011, when he was a part of McKinsey and Company, he was
listed in the “25 hottest young executives below 40 in India” by
Business Today. Sunish graduated with honors from Delhi University
and holds an MBA from the Indian Inslitute of Management, Calcutta
where he was a goid medalist.

Mr.
Ramachandra
Kasargod
Kamath

Independent
Director

Mr. Kamath is the former Chairman & Managing Director of Punjab
National Bank (2009-14), where he was the youngest CMD of a
nationalized bank in I[ndia. He also served as Chairman of PNB
Housing Finance at that time, and oversaw the transformation and
rapid growth of that business prior to his assignment at PNB, Mr.
Kamath spent almost 30 years in Corporation Bank, before moving
on to Bank of India as Executive Director and then to Allahabad
Bank as Chairman & Managing Director. He has also been the
Chairman of the Indian Banks Association for two years and
consistently figuring in the Top 100 India Inc. Most Powerful CEOs
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Dhruv Kaji

L

DinshawPandole

Mr. K;rtikey’a

Mr. Dartus

Name Designation Experience
surveyed by Economic Times during 2010-2014. ]

Mr. Director Mr. P. Madhava Rao has more than 35 years of experience with ING

MadhavaPotturi, VYSYA BANK LTD where he handled various branches — Metro,
Urban, Semi urban and rural branches as Regional Manager and Vice
President. He brings in depth knowledge of credit risk, agri & social
banking, project finance elc. I1e was also trainer in his banking
career. He is one of the partners ol M/s NMR ASSOCIATES dealing
with project [inance and consultancy services. He gained experience
in HOUSING FINANCE as Senior Vice President of ING VYSYA
BANK HOUSING FINANCE LTD. Achieved targets continuously
both in Deposits and Advances. Took initiative in developing new
products and established lie-ups with various corporate and leading
Institutions and brought new connections to the bank including
exposure to leading MFIs.

Mr Abanti Mitra | Independent Ms. Abanti Mitra comes with over a decade of rich experience in

Director mass market, microfinance, credit ratings and consulting. She is a

Noniinee Director

director in Positron Services, a boutique consulting firm assisting
clients in maximizing performance. She also holds a directorship
position in Development Equities Private Limited. She is engaged in
consulting assignments with institutions focused on Bottom of
Pyramid clients; Marketing Research and Advisory research for
wholesale insurance companies;, Microfinance Institutions (MFIs) —
including incubation, stralegic planning, product design, head —
hunting and financial advisory (debt & equity); Capacity building
needs assessment on behalf of donor agencies and funding
institutions. And helps the CSR wings of various corporate and
makes an impact. She holds a Masters Degree in Rural Management
assessments. B
Mr. Kartik, a MBA graduate from The Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania worked as an Investment Advisor (or
Kedaara Capital before joining Spandana. He also worked as an
Associate Director in the Mumbai office of the worldwide investment
firm Temasek Holdings, where he targeted on open and private
market interests in the monetary administrations, telecom, and
innovation divisions. Already, he functioned as an Investment Banker
in New York, at Merrill Lynch and Perella Weinberg Partners, and
furthermore as a Summer Associate at Warburg Pincus.

Nominee Director

Darius Pandole is the Managing Director & CEO of JM [Financial
[nvestment Managers Limited which represents the Private Equity
Fund Management business of the Group. Darius brings with him
around 25 years of private equity investing experience in India. He
previously worked with New Silk Route Advisors Private Limited
where he worked as Partner from January 2007. His prior stints have
been with IDFC AMC, IndAsia Fund Advisors, indocean Venture
Advisors, Duke’s Ltd., etc.His qualifications include a Masters in
Business Administration (MBA) from the Graduate School of
Business at the University of Chicago, and a Bachelors of Arts (BA -
Economics) from Harvard University.

Amit Sobti

Nominee Director

Amit Sobti is a Senior Principal in the Private Capital division of
Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan and is part of the senior team
responsible for direct and co-investing activities across the Asia-
Pacific region. He has 17 years of experience in private equity and
investment banking. Before joining Ontario Teachers', Amit was a
Principal at Unitas Capital, a mid-market private equity firm based in
Hong Kong, prior to which he was a Principal in the healthcare group
at Warburg Pincus, one of the largest global private equity firms. He

| previously worked at Rhone Capital and-in the M&A group within |
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PRODUCT DETAILS:

Name Designation [xperience
investment banking at Merrill Lynch. Amit holds a dual A.B., magna
cum laude, in Business Economics and Computer Science from
Brown University
iii. Brief Profile of the Senior Management
( Name Designation Experience
Ms. Padmaja Founder & »  Started her career with an NGO and has over 18 years ol
Reddy Managing experience in the Microfinance industry
Director +  Winner of the “Outstanding Woman Leadership Award” for the
year 2016, by Golden Globe Tigers Summit, Malaysia
*  Has a graduate degree in Communication & Journalism along
with  MBA from Nagarjuna University and a degree in
Microfinance from Harvard Business School
Post Graduate in Business Administration from JCFAI o
Mr. Abdul VP- Has been with Spandana since 2008 in various roles such as Payroll
Feroz Khan Technology and Backend Operations; played critical role in migrating huge data
and MIS over 60 lakh loans accounts {from a window based software to a web
based software.
Senior VP- . eG\/xE:l%Jiz;ecex?n SI?CTO%I;ZLCQPPIlcauons with over 13 years of
Ir. Ra isk : ) . .
N.l Raghu Ris »  He worked at the grass root level as Credit Assistant and Branch
Vinay management Manager
& audit e
He was exposed to different department and he is a all rounder .
i. Business Segments-

Products Loan Amount Annual Interest Upfront Tenure Repayment
Interest rate type Processing (months)
fees
JLG Loans
Income Up to 15,000 24.915% Declining 1% + G.S.T. 52 Bi- weekly
generation Loan earlier now basis fortnightly
— Abhilasha (1% revised to
cycle) 30,000.
Income Up to 36,000 24.915% | Declining | 1% +G.S.T. 52 Bi- weekly
generation Loan basis fortnight
— Abhilasha
{second cycle)
Income Up to 40,000 24.915% Declining 1% + G.S.T. 52 Bi- weekly
generation Loan and higher for basis fortnight
— Abhilasha higher cycle
(third cycle) loans
Interim loans
Existing JLG | 4,000t0 12,000 |  24.915% Declining | 1%+GST. | 52 | Bi-weekly
customers basis fortnight
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Gold Loans
Gold loan 10,000 to 16-21% on o 112 Monthly
10,00,000 the basis of months
LTV and loan
tenor
ii. Company Credit Rating

BBB-by ICRA.The rating is based on the experience of the promoter and management team, diversitied
resource base, inprovement in income and profitability and good asset quality.

() Gross Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company

Before the issue of debt securities 2.69

After the issue of debt securities 2.72
Calculations

As onSeptember 30, 2017 debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as follows:-

Debt 15,84,88.60,151
Equity 5,81,72.34.772

Debt/Equity

2.69

Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as tollows:-

Debt 15,84,88.60.151
Equity 5,81,72,34.772
Debt/Equity 2.72
(d) Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding new projects:

Not applicable
5.5 Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:
(a) Details of Share Capital as onlatest quarter end i.e.September 30, 2017:

Share Capital

Rs.

Authorised

20,00,00,00,000

TOTAL 20,00,00,00,000
[ssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up 28.44,93,930
Preference Shares 9,01,01,68,097
TOTAL 9,29,46,62,027
(b) Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e.September 30, 2017, for the last five

years:

| Date of Change (AGM/EGM)

Authorised Capital in Rs.

Particulars

26
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(<) Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on the last quarter end i.e.September 30, 2017,
for the last five ycars:

Date of Name of No. of equity | Face value | Cumulative [ Cumulative | Cumulative
allotment Shareholder |shares issued number of |paid up share share
equity shares | capital (in | premium (In
Cr) rs. Cr)

JM Financial
Trustee 5,44,000 10 65.82,276 6.58 38.88
Company Pvt
Ltd
Valiant

16.05.2014 |Mauritius 3,30,000 10 39,81,780 398 110.04
Partners FDI Ltd
Helion Venture ¢
Partners Il LLC 90,000 10 7,85,135 0.78 0.39
Helion Venture
Partners LLC 36,000 10 7,31,136 0.73 0.18
Kangchenjunga 78,96,937 10 78,96,937 7.89 178.06
Limited

31.03.2017 [ﬁff*f‘f“f.‘ Capital
atternatve 171,689 10 ,71,689 0.17 3.87
Investment Fund

(d) Fully convertible Warrants pending for conversion as on September 30, 2017:NIL
(e) Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the last 1 (one) year:

There has been no acquisition or amalgamation in the last 1 (one) year.

(H) Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the last I (one) year:

here has been no reorganization or reconstruction in the last 1 (one) year.

5.6 Details of the shareholding of the Company as on the latest quarter end, i.e. Septemiber 30, 2017:
Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on last quarter end, i.e.September 30, 2017
Sr. Name of the Sharcholder / i ota‘l I\u?nbcr ot DL T "'j
No Particnlars Class of equity percentage (% ) | shares held in
A : shares of Shareholding Demat Form
| Padmaja Gangireddy Equity 58.04.412 | 20.40 158.03,657 |
Vijaya Siva Rami Reddy -
2 Vendidandi Equity 14,91,483 5.24 14,79,983
3 Lok Advisory Services Pvt Ltd Lquity - 3,19,065 1.12 3,19,065
4 ?f;’;da”a Employee Welfare Equity 2,35,631 0.83 2,35,631
5 SIDBI Equity 50,000 0.18 -
6 Kedaara Capital - AIF | Equity 231110 0.81 231,110
7 JM Financial Trustee Co. Pvt. Eauit
| Ltd. e auity 1,744,303 | 6.13 1,744,303 |
| 8 | JM Financial Products Limited Equity | 2,435,286 8.56 2,435.286 |
Valiant Mauritius Partners FDI . .
9 Limited Equity 39,81,780 14.00 -
10 Helion Venture Partners I, LC Equity 7,31,136 2.57 1,54,045
| 11 | Helion Venture Partners 11 LLC Equity 7,85,135 276 | 1,81,888
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12 Kangchenjunga Limited LEquity 10,630,052 37.36 | 10,630,052
13 Bala DeepthiGangireddy Equity 10,000 o 0.04 -
Total Equity Shares 2,84,49,393 100.00 2,32,15,020

Notes: Details of Shares pledged or encumbered by the promoters (if any): None

(a) List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on the latest quarter end, i.c.
September 30, 2017:
- Name of the : ) Total pelic;riltrgt. Nimber of shares
:lo Sharcholder / Class T(:etal:i}t\ “:::le.:)sofw (%) of held in Demat
. Particulars LD Shareholding Form
Kangchenjunga SUN
U | Limited Equity 10,630,052 37.36 10,630,052
Padmaja . . .
_2 | Gangireddy | Equity 58,04,4 Izd 20.40 ] 38,03,657_
Valiant Mauritius
3 Partners [FDI Equity 39,81,780 14.00 -
Limited
JM Financial . - <
4 Products Limited Equity 2,435, 286 8.56 2,435,286
JM Financial
> Egme Co. Pyt Equity 1,744,303 6.13 1,744,303
_ Vijaya Siva Rami - o B
6 Reddy Vendidandi Equity 14,91,483 5.24 i 14,79,983
Helion Venture . -
7 Partners 1l LLC Equity 7,85,135 2.76 1,81,888
Helion Venture . P, -
78; | Partners LLC | Equity 7,31,136 2.57 | I,S4,043_
Lok Advisory . . _
9 Services Pvt Ltd Equity 3,19,065 1.12 3,19,065
Spandana
10 Employee Welfare Equity 2,35,631 0.83 2,35,631
Trust
2,81,58,283 | 98.98% 2,29,83,910
5.7 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:
(a) Details of current directors of the Company:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors

Memorandum:

as on date of the [nlformation

S. | Name of the | Designatio | Date of | Address DIN PAN Director Divector in  other
N | Directors n Birth ol the | company
0. company
since
A-208, "A" block,
Jayabheri Orange l. PVK Motors Private
. ) . County AEZP Limited
| GZ?\ZTE&Z}/ i\g“?scgtgtg l?(;g;— Nanakramguda, 002248 G1437 | 19/04/2003 | 2. Spandana  Sphoorty
Financial District, L, Chit Funds Private
Gachibowli Limited
— Hyderabad 500032
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Flat no. 1902, 19th . MahindraLogistic
. . < Floor, The Imperial, lex'led
Sunish Nominee 25-10- South’ Tower. BB 002744 | AETPS 31/03/2017 2. ManjushreeTechnop
Sharma Director 1974 ’ 32 8733M ack Limited
NakasheMarg, 3. VedantFashionsPriv
Mumbai 400034 oo
| i | ate Limited
l. BQ Padmavathy
Finance  Academy
Private Limited
B/2004, Neptune 2. Aavas ['inanciers
A msargod | Independe | 1911 L | 017150 | ABSPK | oos- | G L
) nt Director 1955 - 73 8250N 2017 T S
Kamath Marg, Powai Consultancy Private
Mumbai 400076 Limited
4. Manipal
Technologies
~ Limited ]
Flat No.303,Shivam | Prasoma T
‘ Fortune Kumkum ) Solutions Private
Madhava Director 05-06- | Heights 186/P RR 017878 | AIRPP 15/09/2014 Limited -
Potturi 1949 | Masjidbanda, 40 0456A .
- 2. Nandan Bio-
Kondapur Hyderabad Research Foundation
500084 L |
I. Development
Flat No.B-1201 E'qui.ties Private
. Limited
Floor 12th, Oberoi AKEP - 2. Positron Consulting
Abanti Mitea Independe | 08-07- | Woods Mohan, 023058 M7995 04-05- Services Private
nt. Director 1978 Gokhale Road, 93 2017 S
’ C Limited
Goregoan East. 3. Positron  Advisor
Mumbai 40006 A SOty
Services Private
L Limited
7A, Lands End, BDTP
Kartikeya Nominee 22-03- | Doongersey Road, 076417 K0645 31-03- l. Aavas [Financiers
Dhruv Kaji Director 1983 | Malabar Hill 23 2017 Limited
Mumbai 400006 Q
I. Credibility Financial
Services Private
5 B Sunshine ) Limited
Darius . Apartmepts,lS B 2. JM Financial Asset
DinshawPan N(?mlnee 27-04- Malwal'sh|l<al"\/e 007273 | AAFPP 18-07- Man.agement
) dole Director 1966 | Road, Opposite : 20 7571C 2017 Limited
Oval Maidan, 3. Mahindra Logistics
Mumbai-400020 Limited
4. Fairchem Speciality
Limited
J-125, 1 Block,
Opposite Chawla
AMIT Nominee 04-03- | Nursing Home, 077958 | AAMP 29-05-
SOBT! Director 1979 | Rajouri Garden, 74 S1644) 2017 )

Tagore Garden, Wesl
Delhi Delhi 110027

. |

*Company (o disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and/or ECGC

default list, if any: None
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(b) Details of change in directors since last three years:
I i Date of Director of the ]
Name Designation DIN Appointment/ Company since (in Remarks
Resignation case of resignation)
Nominee 03567775 13/02/2014 09/06/2011 Nomination
Avinash Umapathy Director withdrawn by
| appointing authority |
. Nominee 02435323 [13/08/2014 28/06/2013 Nomination
Khazan Singh . .
. Director withdrawn by
Singhwan L L
appointing authority
Lakshmi Director 03567778 22/11/2015 28/06/201 1 Resignation
Narasaiahgunturu
Abanti Mitra Director 02305893 01/11/2016 20/11/2012 Resignation
NatarajanRanganathan | Director 00218008 01/11/2016 08/02/2016 | Resignation
Kartikeya Dhruv Kaji N‘o.mlne‘e 07641723 31/03/2017 - Appointment
Director
Sunish Sharma N_ommee 00274432 31/03/2017 - Appointment
| Director | B | . B

| Perur Seshappa Prasad | Director 100206204 | 31/03/2017 15/09/2014 Resignation
Annapureddy Independent 02873035 25/04/2017 15/09/2014 TResignation
Gopalareddy Director

Nominee 02650040 02/05/2017 24/09/2015 Nomination
Sundaram - )
. Director withdrawn by
Ramakrishnan L .
appointing authority
Abanti Mitra lanependent 02305893 04/05/2017 - Appointment

] Director | o
Ramachandra Independent 01715073 04/05/2017 - Appointment
ICasargod Kamath Director
Amit Sobti qunee 07795874 29/05/2017 - Appointment

Director )
. . Nominee 00727320 18/07/2017 19/05/2017 Nomination
Darius Dinshaw - ) )
Director withdrawn by
Pandole . .

i | B | appointing authority |
Darius Dinshaw Nominee 00727320 18/07/2017 - Appointment
Pandole Director

58 Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:
(a) Details of the auditor of the Company:
| Name Address Auditor since Remark

(4™ Floor, The Ruby 29

M/s. S. R. Baltiboi& Co. SenapatiBapatMarg, 5 September 2013 i

LLP Dadar (West), Mumbai —
400028
(b) Details of change in auditors since last three years:None
5.9 Details of borrowings of the Company, as on September 30, 2017:
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(a) Details of Secured Loan Facilities:
Security j
Griaulhtive Principal Amount ;
Tybe of IA el Outstanding as on Repavment P"'“"'.")’ Percen_tn
Lender’s Name YPE iR September 30, sl Security ge of
Facility Sanctloncd 2017 Date/Schedule (book debt Cash
(Rs. Mn) (sl Mn.) hypothecati | Collater
on) al
[CICI Bank
Limited Term Loan 1,180 885 30-Mar-19 110% 5%
Yes Bank
| Limited Term Loan | 4,750 | 4,125 10-Mar-19 110% ]
Indusind Bank
Limitled Term Loan 4,000 3,429 31-Mar-19 110%
IFMR Capital
Finance Private
Limited Term Loan 800 688 17-May-19 100% B
Reliance
Commercial
| Finance Limited Term Loan 400 305 Ol-Jun-18 | 100% 0%
Hinduja Leyland
Finance Limited Term Loan 70 64 31-May-20 110%
MAS Financial
Services Limited | Term Loan 350 317 08-Jun-20 110%
Capital Tirst
Limited Term Loan 550 550 09-Jun-20 I 10%
Visu Leasing Term Loan 400 367 28-Jun-19 110% 10%
Clix Capital Term loan 500 211 07-Jul-18 125%
Au Small
Finance Bank Term Loan 400 356 10-Jan-19 110% 5% |
Kotak Mahindra
Bank Term Loan 250 233 03-Aug-19 110%
Bandhan Bank Term Loan 750 750 03-Oct-19 100%
Hero Fincorp
Limited Term Loan 300 147 02-Aug-20 110% 5% |
JM Financial
Products Limited Term Loan 500 500 04-Jan-19 I 10%
Mahindra &
Mabhindra
Financial
Services Limited Term Loan 500 475 I'l-Jan-19 I 10% 3%
Manappuram
Finance Limited Term [Loan | 750 750 i1-Sep-20 110% i
(b) Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as of September 30, 2017;
e N = pai] Amount Principal Amount Repayment
s N P50 Eacili(y Sanctioned Outstanding Date/Schedule
Capital First Sub Debt 200 200 8-Jun-24
Limited -
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(c) Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as of September 30, 2017:
Debentu | Tenor/Pe | Coupon Amount Date of | Redempt Credit Secured/ | Security
re Series riod of (Rate of (Rs in allotment | ion Date/ Rating Unsecure
Maturity | Interest) Lacs) Schedule d
N.A. 36 12.30% 12,00,00, 21-08- 21-08- ICRA Secured 100% of
months 000/- 2017 2020 BBB- Book
Debt
Hypothec
ation
N.A. 72 14% 100,00,00 18-09- 18-09- ICRA Secured 115% of
months ,000/- 2017 2023 BBB- Book
Debt
Hypothec
ation
N.A. 36 a) 13.30% | 20,00,00, 26-09- 25-09- ICRA Unsecure N.A.
months | (Thirteen 000/- 2017 2020 BBB- d
Decimal
Point
Three Zero
Percent)
per annum
coupon for
year |
b) 12.85%
(Twelve
Decimal
Point
Eight Five
Percent)
per annuim
coupon for
year 2.
¢) 12.40%
(Twelve
Decimal
Point Four
Zero
Percent)
per annum
coupon for
year 3.
(d) List of Top 10 Debenture Holders as onSeptember 30, 2017:
S. Name of Debenture Holders Amount (Rs. in Crores)
No.
1 UTI INTERNATIONAL WEALTH CREATOR 4 | 100.00
2 UNIFI AIF 20.00
3 NANDALA 0.26
4 ASHWIN CHHAGANLAL PATEL 0.25
|5 SUREKHA ASHWIN PATEL 0.25 N
6 JATINDER DINANATH MEHRA 0.25
7 NISHI SAIGAL 0.23 ) )
8 KAMAL DEVA TAYAL 0.22 —m N
9 VONITA SINGH 0.20
10 SAILEN GOPAL NANDY 0.18 B AN
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The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the counterparty
(like name of the subsidiary, JV eutity, group, comipany, etc) on behalf of whom it has been
issued (if any)).

The Company has not issued any corporate guarantee for any third party as of September 30, 2017.
Details of Commercial Paper (as of September 30, 2017):
The Company has not issued any commercial paper as of September 30, 2017.

Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally Convertible
Debentures / Preference Shares ) as on September 30, 2017:

NIL

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term
loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued by
the Company, in the past 5 years:

Due to AP Crisis, Operations were adversely impacted and company had applied for CDR torum for
restructuring. Company serviced debt and interest as per the CDR repayment schedule till Dec 2013,
Indusind Bank gave an offer to buy good portfolio in Non AP States and use sale proceeds to square off
debt with all 37 CDR Lenders. Indusind Bank also offered to buy OCCRPS from all the lenders and
convert into equity. In view of executing this transaction as it has pre-closure of debt to all the lenders,
Lenders deferred repayment from Oct 2015 to Mar 2016 as they did not approve fresh limits as Company
started s pursuing options to exit CDR.

> Indusind Bank had written to RBI seeking approval to buy OCCRPS from all the lenders and they did not
get revert from RBI by Mar 2016. The Joint Lenders Forum has extended the corrective action plan of
clearing over dues to Sep 2016 and subsequently to Dec and Mar 2017. [n between the MC (Monitoring
Committee) advised Company to service interest from Nov onwards and interest has been serviced for
Nov, Dec and January 2017. While CDR EG has extended timelines to complete the transaction till Mar
2017, the settlement transaction was completed within timelines and the outstanding dues of all Banks
were cleared on 30 Mar 2017.

(i) Details of any outstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued where taken / issued (i) for
consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a preminm or discount, or (iii) in
pursuance of an option:

NIL

5.10 Details of Promoters of the Company:

(a) Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on latest quarter end, i.e. September 30, 2017:

Sr No | Name of the Total No of No .of shares Total No of shares % of shares

shareholders | Lquity shares in Demat shareholding Pledged pledged with

form #s % of total respect to
10 of equity shares owned
shares

| Padmaja 58,04,412 58,03,657 20.40 - Bl

Gangireddy -
2 Vijaya Siva

Rami Reddy 14,91,483 14,79,983 5.24 -

| Vendidandi |
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5.1 Abridged version of the Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit
and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three years and

auditor qualifications, if any.

l:Proﬁi & Loss Statement (in Rs. Lakhs) FY 2014 -2015 LFY 2015-2016 | FY 2016-2017
Income {Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
Interest & Fee on loans 3,019,717,136 3,438,618,524 3,714,677,645
Other Financial Income - - -
Other Income 234,351,144 [,288.388.422 | 503,561,528 |
Total Income 3,254,068,280 | 4,727,006,946 | 4,218,239,173 |
“Expenditure/ Cost of Sales T 1T ]
Personnel Expenditure 709,381,102 570,872,217 582,959,601
Provisioning & Write-off Expenditure 50,525,032 106,821,766 420,281,147
Depreciation and Amortization 33,130,234 37,011,072 83,331,208
Other Expenditure 289,962,341 285,617,817 287,529,719
i Total Expenditure 1,082,998,709 1,000,322.872 1,374,101,675
- Operating Profit before Interest 2,171,069,571 3,726,684,074 2,844,137,498
B Interest [,117.750,723 | 1,294.331328 | 2,078,810,656 |
| Operating profit after Interest | 1,053,318,848 | 2,432,352,746 | 765326,842 |
Net non-operating income/expenses - -
Profit Before Tax 1,053,318,848 2,432,352,746 765,326,842
[ncome Tax 7,832,394 - 235,839,798
Net Profit 1,045,486,454 2,432,352,746 529,487,044
Balance Sheet (in INR Lakhs)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Short Term borrowings - | . T IWOO—NI—
Other Current Liabilities | 8,828,194,542 | 11,022,904,040 | 4,616,766,157
Short Term Provisions 112,339,460 115,482,854 286,341,225
Total Current Liabilitics 8,940,534,002 11,138,386,894 4,913,107,663
Other Non-current Liabilitics 14,946,014,118 8,018,957,718 13,846,295,582
Total Liabilitics
Ordinary Share Capital 8,279,965,760 | 8,113,884.880 | 9,294.662,027
h " Reserves & Surplus (8,641,815,526) | (6,272,989.319) | (3,922,306,249)
Legal reserves - T ]
Other Capital - - c
Net Worth (361,849,766) 1,840,895,561 5,372,355,778
Total Equity & Liabilities 23,524,698,354 | 20,998,240,173 | 24,131,759,023
Assets
Current Assets 10,989,375,021 | 11,673,626,444 9,780,175,123
Cash and Bank balances 590,899,870 353,264,361 2,901,168,938
T Net Receivables 18,566,498 18,339,713 72,941
[ Other Short term Loan & Advances | 30,256,132 14,140,550 30,561,835
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Other Current Assets 97,541,088 86,887,873 75,3 IH§99

Total Current Assets 11,726,638,609 | 12,146,258,941 | 12,787,289,436
Fixed Assets - Gross Block 275,833,974 244,683,839 257,200,430
Depreciation 233,167,370 122,905,655 190,968,941
Fixed Assets - Net Block 42,666,604 121,778,184 66,231,489
[ntangible Assets 13272266 22,905,744 23,849,346

i Capial Work in Progress 55,941,594 | T

" Long-term loans and Advances 11652234360 | 8,685419,287 | 11,230,775,240
Other Non-Current assels 33944921 21,878,017 23,613,512

Total Non-Current Assets 11,798,059,745 8,851,981,232 11,344,469,587

Total Assets 23,524,698,354 | 20,998,240,173 | 24,131,759,023

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality
(e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the [ssuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting
in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc) at the time of Issne which may affect the
issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the debt securities.

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change at the time of
issue from the position as on the date of the last audited financial statements of the Issuer, which may
affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invesl/ continue to invest in the debt securities of the
[ssuer.

Names of the Debentures Trustees and Consents thereof

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Debentures is Catalyst Trusteeship. Catalyst Trusteeship
Limited has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture trustee to the Issue and
inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this Information Memorandum and
in all the subsequent periodical communications sent to the Debenture Holders. The consent letter
from Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure [l of this Information Memorandum.

Rating

The Rating Agency has assigned ratings of “ICRABBB-” (pronounced as “BBB minus”) to the
Debentures. Instruments with this rating are considered to have adequate degree of safety regarding
timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk. The rating rationale
from the Rating Agency is provided in Annexure Il of this Information Memorandum.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letter with
similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain
detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by the
investor aloung with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer document.

Not applicable
Names of all the recognized stock exchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be listed:

(a) The NCDs are proposed to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”) within 20
calendar days of the Deemed Date of Allotment

(b) The Company shall ensure that the Debentures at all times are rated in accordance with the
provisions of the Transaction Documents and that the rating ol the Debentures is not
downgraded or withdrawn throughout the tenor of the Debentures.
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5.17 Other details:

(a) Debenture Redemption Reserve Creation:
As per Section 71 of the 2013 Act, any company that intends to issue debentures must create a
debenture redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out of the prolits of the
company until the redemption of the debentures. However, at present, under the Companies (Issuance
of Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, non-banking financial companies are exempt from this
requirement in respect of privately placed debentures. Pursuant to this exemption, the Company does
not intend to create any reserve funds for the redemption of the Debentures.

(b) Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act
including the notified rules thereunder and the applicable RBI guidelines.

(¢) Application process:
The application process for the [ssue is as provided in SECTION 8:of this Information Memorandum.

5.18 A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on
by the Company or entered into more than 2 (Two) years before the date of this Information
Memorandum, which are or may be deemed material, have been entered into by the Company.

The contracts and documents referred to here under are material to the Issue, may be inspected at the
registered office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days.

Sr. No. | Nature of Contract
I Certified true copy of the Memorandum of Association& Articles of Association of the Issuer

Board resolution dated 17" October, 2017, read with the Resolution passed by the Management

2 Committee of the Board dated 8™ October, 2017 Board of Directors authorizing the issue of
Debentures oftered under terms of this Disclosure Document.

Shareholder Resolution dated August 04, 2017authorizing the issue of non-convertible debentures
by the Company. B - B ] |
Shareholder Resolution dated March 29, 2017 authorizing the borrowing by the Company
and Shareholder Resolution dated September 13, 2017 authorizing the creation of security.
5 Copies of Annual Reports ol the Company for the last three E’mancial years '

6 Credit rating rationale from the Rating Agency .

7 Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited giving its consent to act as Debenture Trustee
8

9

Letter for Register and Transfer Agent
Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company

Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar & Transfer |
Agent and the NSDL/CDSL

5.19 Details of Debt Securities Sought to be Issued
Under the purview of the current document, the [ssuer intends to raise an amount of Rs. 18,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Eighteen crores Only)by issue of Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible

Debentures, on a private placement basis.

For further details of the Debentures, please refer Lo the terms and conditions of the debentures set out in
Section 5.22 of this Information Memorandum.

5.20 Issue Size

The aggregate issue size tor the Debentures is Rs. 18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Only).
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5.21 Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

The Issuer shall utilise the moneys received towards subscription of the Debentures for the disbursement ol the
[ssuer’s general corporate purposes ol the Company including repayments and/or refinancing of existing debt.

The Tssuer undertakes that the proceeds of this Issue shall be utilized for the deployment of [unds on its own
balance sheet and not to facilitate resource requests of its group entities/parent company/associates. The funds
raised by the Issue shall be utilized by the Company solely tor the aforesaid purpose and the Company shall not
use the proceeds of the Issue towards:

() any capital market instrument such as equity, debt, debt linked and equity linked instruments or any
other capital market related activities; or

(ii) any speculative purposes; or

(iii) any activity on the Exclusion List; or

(iv) investment in the real estate sector; or

(v) in contravention of any guidelines, rules or regulations of the RBI applicable to non-banking financial
comparries.

The Issuer undertakes that proceeds of this Issue shall not be utilized (or the following purposes as specitied in
the RBI Master Circular No. DBR.BP.BC.N0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015:

1) Bills discounted / rediscounted by NBFCs, except [or rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs arising
out of: Commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles) and two wheeler and three wheeler
vehicles, subject to the following conditions: The bills should have been drawn by the manufacturer on
dealers only; The bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may be ascertained from the chassis /
engine number and; Before rediscounting the bills, the bona fides and track record of NBFCs which have
ciscounted the bills would be verified.

2) Investments of NBFCs both of current and long-term nature, in any company / entity by way of shares,
debentures, etc. However, Stock Broking Companies may be provided need-based credit against shares and
debentures held by them as stock-in-trade.

3) Unsecured loans / inter-corporate deposits by NBFCs to / in any company.

4)  All types of loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiaries, group companies / entities.

5) Finance to NBFCs for further lending to individuals for subseribing to Initial Public Offerings (IPO) and
for purchase of shares from secondary market

5.22 Issue Details

Security Name 12.30% Spandana 2020 Il

Issuer Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited

Type of Instrument Non-Convertible Debentures

Nature of Instrument
Debentures

Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible

—]

Seniority Unsubordinated,

Mode of Issue Private placement

Eligible/Identified Investors As provided in Section8.14 below

The NCL);‘. are proposed to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
(*BSE”) within 20 calendar days ol the Deemed Date of Allotment

Listing

In case of a delay by the Issuer in listing the Debentures beyond 20

(Twenty) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment the Issuer shall make
payment the Debenture Holders ol penal interest calculated on the face
value of the Debentures at the rate of minimum of 1% (One Percent) p.a.
over the Coupon Rate from the expiry of 30 (Thirty) calendar days from
the Deemed Date of Allotment until the listing of the Debentures.

[n the event that the NCDs are not listed within 15 (TFifteen) days trom the
Deemed Date of Allotment [or any reason whatsoever, then to the extent

Ny
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that any Debenture Holders are Foreign Institutional [nvestors or sub-
accounts of Foreign Institutional Investors or Qualified Foreign Investors,
the Issuer undertakes to immediately redeem and/or buyback any and all
Debentures within 2 (two) Business Days of the expiry of the Listing
Period.

Rating of Instrument

BBB-by ICRA Limited

Issue Size

Issue of 18,00,00,000(Eighteen Crore) Senior ,Secured, Rated, Listed
Redeemable and Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Re. 1/-
(Rupee One Only) (“Debentures”) aggregaling up to Rs. 18,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Eighteen Crores Only),on a private placement basis

Option to retain oversubscription

Objects of the [ssue

N.A.

To raise secured unsubordinated debl to the extent upto Rs. 18,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Eighteen Crores only) for general corporate purposes of the
Company including repayments and/or refinancing of existing debt
("Purpose").

Detatils utilization of

Proceeds

of the

the

The issue proceeds will be utilized general corporate purposes of the [ssuer
including repayments and/or refinancing of existing debt.

Coupon Rate

Step Up/ Step Down Coupon Rate

12.30% (Twelve Decimal Point Three Zero) per annum.

N.A.

Coupon Payment Frequency

Monthly

Coupon Payment Date

As set out in Annexure VI

Coupon Type

Fixed

Coupon Reset Date

N.A.

Day Count Basis

Interest on Application Money

Default Interest Rate

Actual/Actual

Interest at the Interest Rate will be paid on Application Money to the

Applicants from the date of receipt of such Application Money up to |
(one) day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment tor all valid applications,
within 5 (Five) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Where
the entire subscription amount has been refunded, the interest on
Application Money will be paid along with the refunded amount. Where an
Applicant is allotted a lesser number of Debentures than applied for, the
excess amount paid on application will be refunded to the applicant in the
bank account of the Applicant as described in the Application Form
towards interest on the refunded money by electronic mode of transfer like
RTGS/NEFT/direct credit. Details of allotment will be sent to every
successful Applicant. In all cases, the interest instruments will be sent, at
the sole risk of the Applicant/ first Applicant.

(a) The Company shall pay a default interest rate of 2% (Two per
cent) per annum above the applicable Interest Rate on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts from the date of the occurrence of
a Payment Default or any other Event of Default until such
Payment Default or Event of Default is cured.

(b) The Company shall pay an additional interest rate of 2% (Two per
cent) per annum above the applicable Interest Rate on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts from the date of the occurrence of
any breach of ils obligations set out under the Transaction
Documents until such breach is cured.

Coupon Reset Process

N.A.

Tenor

36 (Thirty Six) months [rom the Deemed Date of Allotment

Redemption Date

The Debentures shall be fully redeemed on.the Malurity Date. as sel oul in
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Annexure Vi

Redemption Amount

Re. 1/~ (Rupee. One Only) per Debenture on the Maturity'l)ule plus
accrued Coupon if any.

Rcden?ption Premiun_1/ Discounrt N.A.

Issue Price Re. 1/- (Rupees One Only) per D_ebenture N

Discount at which security is issued | N.A. -

and the effective yield as a result of

such discount

Put Date N.A.

Put Price NA. N

Call Date N.A.

Call Price NA. |
Put Notification Time N.A. ]
Call Notification Time NA. |

Face Value

Rs. 1/- (Rupee One Only) per Debenture

Minimum Application size and in
multiples of | thereatfter

The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 20,000 Debentures.

Issue Timing

Issue Opening Date: October 25,2017

Issue Closing Date: October 26,2017

Pay-in Dates: October 26,2017

Deemed Date of Allotment: October 26,2017

Settlement mode of the [nstrument

Issuance mode of the [nstrument Demat only
Trading mode of the Instrument Demat only
RTGS

Depositories

NSDL and CDSL

Business Day Convention

If any Due Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the payment to
be made on such Due Date shall be made on the immediately succeeding
Business Day, except where such Due Date is for the payment of the
Redemption Amount, in which case such payment shall be made on the
immediately preceding Business Day.

Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture [Holders who
shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any Due Date, which shall
be the date falling 3(Three) Business days prior to any Due Date.

Security (Including description, type
of security, type of charge, likely date
of creation of security, minimum
security cover, revaluation,
replacement of security)

The Debentures shall be secured by way of a first ranking, exclusive and
continuing charge on identified receivables (“Hypothecated Receivables™)
created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation to be executed between the
Company and the Debenture Trustee as described hercin. The
Hypothecated Assets shall at all times be equal to the value of the
outstanding principal amount of the Debentures.

Transaction Documents

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement

Shall be as set out in Section6. | below

(i) Execution of Debenture Trustee Agreement, the Debenture
Trust cum Mortgage Deed and the Deed of Hypothecation ;

(ii) Copies of the constitutional documents and the corporate
authorisations shall be provided to the Debenture Trustee;

(iii) Rating of the Debentures being completed and the rating
letter issued by the Rating Agency being in a form and
manner satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee.
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Conditions
Disbursement

Subsequent to

(a) Filing of the relevant documents inter alia private
placement offer letter, return of allotment etc. with the ROC
within the timelines specified under the rules under the
Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Execution of any other documents as customary for
transaction of a similar nature and size.

Event of Default

As customary for a ransaction of this nature and as further provided for in
the Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

Provisions related to the Cross Default
Clause

As customary for a transaction of this nature and as further provided for in
of the Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

Role  and Responsibilities  of

Debenture Trustee

Representation and warranties and

Covenants

| the Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

[lustration of Bond Cash flows

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on behalf of the
Debenture Holder(s).

As customary for a transaction of this nature and as further provided for in

Kindly refer to Annexure VI of this Information Memorandum

Governing Law

The Debentures and documentation will be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of India and the parties submit to the non-
cxclusive jurisdiction of the courts in Chennai, India.
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SECTION 6:  TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND KEY TERMS

Transaction Documents

The following documents shall be executed in refation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents™):

(a)

(b)

(d)

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Debenture Trustee Agreement, which will conlirm the appointment of Catalyst TrusteeshipLimitedas
the Debenture Trustee (“Debenture Trustee Agreenent™);

Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are
being issued and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by
the [ssuer (“Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed” or “DTMD”);

Deed of Hypothecation (*DoH”); and

Such other documents as agreed between the [ssuer and the Debenture Trustee.

Representations and Warranties of the [ssuer

The representations and warranties of the Issuer shall be as provided for in theDebenture Trust
cum Mortgage Deed.

Covenants of the Issuer

Thecovenants of the Issuer shall be as provided for in the Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.
Events of Default

The Events of Default shall be as provided for in the Debenture Trust cum Mortgage Deed.

Notice on the Occurrence of an Event of Defanlt

Ifany Event of Default or any event which, after the notice, or lapse of time, or both, would constitute
an Event of Default, has occurred, the Company shall, forthwith give notice thereof to the Debenture
Holders and the Debenture Trustee in writing specifying the nature of such event or Event of Delault
(as applicable).

Consequences Of Events Of Default
Upon the happening of an Event of Default, the Debenture Trustee shall be entitled to

exercise any and all remedies in accordance with the terms contained in the Transaction
Documents.
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SECTION7:  DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

In case of listing of debt securities made on private placement, the following disclosures are required
to be made vide SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 w.e.f.

25-053-16:

(A) Name of the Bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

(B) The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

(C) Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

(D) Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A

(E) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: N.A

(F) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take
informed decisions: N.A

(G) Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: N.A
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATIONPROCESS

The Debenlures being offered as parl of the Issue are subject Lo the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this information Memorandum, Application Form and other
terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

8.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transterable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be entitled to transfer
the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The Debenture(s) shall be
transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other applicable
laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the
rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL/CDSL. and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any
other applicable laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer
formalities are completed prior to the Record Datle. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be
paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of debenture holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. [n cases where the transfer
formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need to be settled
with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for transfer of securities held in
dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form. The seller
should give delivery instructions containing details of the buyer’s DP account to his DP.

8.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to those
Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The names
would be as per the R&T Agent’s records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such
Debentures will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of bencficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and account
number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to the Issuer. It
permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS to the bank
account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

83 Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture Holder(s). The [ssuer
and the Debenture Trustee intends to enter/have entered into the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the DTMD
inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and obligations of the Debenture Trustee and the lIssuer. The
Debenture Holder(s) shall, without further act or deed, be deemed to have irrevocably given their consent to the
Debenture Trustee or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in
respect of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trustee may in its absolute discretion deem necessary
or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture Holder(s). Any payment made by the Issuer to the
Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s) shall discharge the Issuer pro tanto to the Debenture
Holder(s). The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of the Debenture Holder(s) in regard o the
repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they will take necessary action, subject to and in accordance
with the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the DTMD, at the cost of the [ssuer. No Debenture Holder shall be
entitled to proceed directly against the [ssuer unless the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to
proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the D'T'MD shall more specifically sct out the
rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of enforcement thereof.

84 Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or part
with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the Issuer, with its
subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory boclies, as
may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use
of the aforesaid information,
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8.5 Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than those
available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders the right to
receive notice(s) or Lo attend and Lo vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of the Issuer.

8.6 Modification of Debentures

The rights, privileges, terms and conditions attached to the Debentures may be varied, modified or
abrogated with 100% (One Hundred percent) of Debenture Holders approving such modification by
way of a unanimous resolution. PROVIDED THAT nothing in such consent or resolution shall be
operative against the Company where such consent or resolution modifies or varies the terms and
conditions governing the Debentures and the same are not acceptable to the Company.

The provisions of the DTMD shall not be modified or amended without the written consent of the
Debenture Trustee provided that the Debenture Trustee shall consent to a modification or an
amendment only if such modification or amendment is approved by a consent in writing of the
Majority Debenture Holder(s) for the time being outstanding, or by a Majority Resolution duly passed
at a meeting of the Debenture Holder(s) convened in accordance with the provisions set out in
Schedule 11 of the DTMD. The Debenture Trustee shall give effect to such modification or amendment
by executing necessary deed(s) supplemental to the DTMD.

8.7 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application for subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof.

8.8 Notices

Any notice may be served by the [ssuer/ Debenture Trustee upon the Debenture Holders through registered
post, electronic mail, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery or by facsimile transmission
addressed to such Debenture Holder at its/his registered address or facsimile number.

All notice(s) to be given by the Debenture Holder(s) to the Issuer/ Debenture Trustee shall be sent by registered
post, electronic mail, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery or by facsimile transmission (o the
[ssuer or to such persons at such address/ facsimile number as may be notified by the Issuer from time to time
through suitable communication. All correspondence regarding the Debentures should be marked *Private
Placement of Debentures”.

Notice(s) shall be deemed to be effective (a)in the case of registered mail, 3 (three) calendar days afler posting;
(b)in the case of electronic mail, at the time of sending; (¢) | (One) Business Day after delivery by recognized
overnight courier service, if sent lor next Business Day delivery; (d) in the case of facsimile at the time when
dispatched with a report confirming proper transmission; or (¢) in the case of personal delivery, at the time of
delivery.

8.9 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder and identitied upfront by the Issuer may apply for the Debentures by
completing the Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the instructions
contained therein. The minimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thercof shall
be set out in the Application Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application
Forms should be duly completed in all respects and applications not completed in the said manner are liable to
be rejected. The name of the applicant’s bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by
the applicant. This is required for the applicant’s own safety and these details will be printed on the refund
orders and /or redemptions warrants.

The applicant should transfer payments required to be made in any relation by NEFT/RTGS, to the bank
account ol the Issuer as per the details mentioned in the Application Form.
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8.10 Application Procedure

Eligible investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the Information
Memorandum during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date (both dates
inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment
al its sole discretion, withoutl giving any reasons or prior notice. The [ssue will be open for subscription during
the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

8.11 Fictitious Applications

All fictitious applications will be rejected.

8.12 Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, [ssuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application, in part
or in [ull, without assigning any reason. Subject to the aforesaid, in case of over subscription, priority will be
given to [nvestors on a first come first serve basis. The investors will be required to remit the funds as well as
submit the duly completed Application Form along with other necessary documents to Issuer by the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

8.13 Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of Rs. 1000/- (Rupees One Thousand

Only) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application. Applicants can remit the application
amount through RTGS on Pay-in Date. The RTGS details of the [ssuer are as under:

Beneficiary Name : Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited
Bank Account No. :201001917803

IFSC Code - INDB0000004

Bank Name : INDUSIND BANK LIMITED
Branch Address : Begumpet Branch, Hyderabad

8.14 Eligible Investors

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached, are eligible to apply for this private
placement ot Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws
applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along with the Application Form (“Eligible
Investors”):

(a) Mutual Funds

(b) Non-banking financial companies

(¢) Provident Funds and Pension FFunds

(d) Corporates

(e) Banks

(H Foreign Institutional Investors (F1Is)

(g) Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)

(h) Qualified Foreign Investors (QFIs)

(i) Insurance Companies

) Investment holding companies of high net worth individuals

4] Any other person (not being an individual or a group of individuals) eligible to invest in the
Debentures

All [nvestors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in
this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory

requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to [ndian securities by such categories of
persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory requirements
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applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requircments. Applicants ought to seek independent
legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

8.15 Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP’s of NSDL/CDSL prior to
making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number and DP -
ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form”,

(©) Debentures allotted Lo an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective beneficiary account(s)
with the DP.
(d) For subscribing to the Debentures, names in thc Application Form should be identical to those

appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily be in
the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the Registrar
and Transfer Agent to the [ssuc.

(H It incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for [ssue of Debentures in
Electronic/Demalerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an incomplete
application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of the Issuer.

(g) For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant as
registered with his/her DP shall be used for all corvespondence with the applicant. The applicant is
therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic details given in the Application Form
vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer would
not be liable for the losses, if any.

) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose names
appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date. In case of
those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not identified in the records of the R&T Agent as
on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in abeyance the payment of the redemption amount or other
benefits, until such time that the beneficial owner is identitied by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the
Issuer, whereupon the redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

8.16 Depository Arrangements

The issuer shall make necessary arrangement with NSDL for issue and holding of Debentures in dematerialised
form.

8.17 List of Beneficiarics

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list ol beneficiaries as at the end ol each Record Date. This
shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

8.18 Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy ol the power of atlorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the names
and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax exerption
certificate/document of the Investor, it any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified to
the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be specified by the Issuer
from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power ol attorney or resolution or authority, a certitied
true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with other
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constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time ol making the application,
failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right Lo accept or reject any application in
whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason Lhereto. Names and specimen signatures of all
the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application Form.

8.19 Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made in
respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the SEBI and such
applications will nol be treated as multiple application, provided thal the application made by the asset
management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for which the
application has been made.

The application forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which application
is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of

(a) SEBI registration certificate
(b Resolutton authorizing investment and containing operating instructions
(c) Specimen signature of authorized signatories

8.20 Documents to be provided by potential Investors

Potential Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable

(a) Memorandum and Articles of’ Association or other constitutional documents
(b) Resolution authorising investment

(c) Power of Altorney to custodian

(d) Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(e) SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

(f) Copy of PAN card

(8 Application Form (including NEFT/ RTGS details)
8.21 Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details
Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and the

magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of redemption amount
and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through EFT/RTGS.

8.22 Succession
In the event of winding-up ol the holder of the Debenture(s), the lssuer will recognize the liquidator of the

concerned Debenture Holder(s), or such other legal representative of the Debenture Holder(s) as having title to
the Debenture(s).

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of suchother legal
representation, in order (o recognize such holder as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the name of
the concerned Debenture Holder on production of sufficient documentary proof and/or an indemnity.

8.23 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheques, demand drafts,EFT/RTGS as set out in the Application Form.
8.24 Effect of Holidays

it any Due Date [alls on a day which is not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be
made on the immediately succeeding Business Day, except if such Due Date is for the Redemption Amount, in

which case the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the immediately preceding Business
Day.

\\
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8.25 Tax Deduction at Source

All payments to be made by the Company to the Debenture Holders under the Transaction Documents shall be
madc free and clear of and without any Tax Deduction unless the Company is required to make a Tax
Deduction pursuant to Applicable Law.

Tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
will be deducted at source. For seeking TDS exemption/lower rate of TDS, relevant certificate/document must
be lodged by the debenture holders at the office of the Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company at least 15
(Fifteen) days before the relevant payment becoming due. Tax exemption certificate / declaration ol non-
deduction of tax at source on interest on application money, should be submitted along with the Application
Form. Interest will be paid to the Debenture Holder subject to deduction of tax deducted at source at the rate
prescribed from time to time under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 or any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time-being in force.

The Company shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax Deduction (or that there is any
change in the rate or the basis of a Tax Deduction) notify the Debenture Trustee accordingly. If the Company is
required to make a Tax Deduction, it shall make that Tax Deduction and any payment required in connection
with that Tax Deduction within the time allowed and in the minimum amount required by Applicable Law.
Within the earlier of (A) 60 (sixty) days of making either a Tax Deduction or any payment required in
connection with that Tax Deduction or (B) 60 (sixty) days of each Due Date, the Company shall deliver Lo the
Debenture Trustee evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee that the Tax Deduction has been
made or (as applicable) any appropriate payment paid to the relevant taxing authority.

8.26 Letters of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures in dematerialised form, will be credited in
dematerialised form within 2 (Two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The aforesaid letter of
allotment shall be replaced with the actual credit of Debentures, in dematerialised form, within a maximum of 7
(Seven) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.27 Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed Date of Allotment.
The Deemed Date of Allotment for the Debentures is October 26, 2017 by which date the Investors would be
intimated of allotment.

8.28 Record Date
The Record Date will be 3(Three) Business Days prior to any Due Date.
8.29 Refunds

Where the entire subscription amount has been refunded, the interest on Application Money will be patd along
with the refunded amount. Where an Applicant is allotted a lesser number of Debentures than applied for, the
excess amount paid on application will be refunded to the Applicant and the cheque/ draft towards interest on
the refunded money will be dispatched by registered post, courier or by way of RTGS/NEFT/direct credit.
Details of allotment will be sent to every successful Applicant. [n all cases, the interest insttuments will be sent,
at the sole risk of the Applicant. In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess
of the aggregate of the application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been
made, the Registrar shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to
the extent of such excess, if any.

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatched within
7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date ol Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the R&T Agent
shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to the extent of such
excess, il any.
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8.30 Interest on Application Money

Interest at the Interest Rate will be paid on Application Money to the Applicants from the date of receipt of
such Application Money up to | (one) day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment for all valid applications,
within 5 (Five) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Where the entire subscription amount has
been refunded, the interest on Application Money will be paid along with the refunded amount. Where an
Applicant is allotted a lesser number of Debentures than applied for, the excess amount paid on application will
be refunded to the applicant in the bank account ol the Applicant as described in the Application Form towards
interest on the refunded money by electronic mode of transfer like RTGS/NEFT/direct credit. Details of
allotment will be sent to every successful Applicant. In all cases, the interest instruments will be sent, al the
sole risk of the Applicant/ first Applicant.

8.31 PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income Tax Act,
1961, on the Application Form and attach a self attested copy as evidence. Application forms without PAN will
be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

8.32 Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made in accordance with the instructions of the Debenture Holder(s) by way of
electronic funds transfer through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture FHolder(s) whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the [ssuer on maturity to
the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holder(s) on the Record
Date. On such payment being made, the [ssuer will inform NSDL/CDSL and accordingly the account of the
Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL/CDSL will be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect ol the Debentures, the liability of the Issuer
shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this Information Memorandum has been
specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all respects, is
liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents provided above is
only indicative, and an investor is reqnired to provide all those documents / authorizations / information,
which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not bound to revert to any investor
for any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject an application as it decms fit.
[nvestment by investors falling in the categories mentioned above are merely indicative and the I[ssuer
does not warrant that they are permitted to invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above
categories of investors is required to check and comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc.
governing or regulating their investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly
or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer
required to check or confirm the same.
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SECTION 9: DECLARATION

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum is contrary
to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as the case may be.
The information contained in this Information Memorandum is as applicable to privately placed debt securities
and subject to information available with the fssuer. The extent of disclosures made in the [nformation
Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities made
by the companies in the past.

For SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIALLIMITED

Authorisét! S tor
Name: Adiya Kumg} =™
Title: AVP - Financé\ =
Date: October 25, 20
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ANNEXURE IT: CREDIT RATING RATIONALE

Spandana Sphoorty Finaneial Ll
August 18,2017
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CXPansion.

s Improved financial posilion, supporfed by the large capital infusion - During FY 2017,
Spandana’s net worth tuened positve w Rs, 537 7 crore as on Macch 31,2007 (- R 6069 crare as on
March 31, 20165 on account of the fresh capital mfusion from Kedaara Capital amounting to Rs. 100
crore and acquisition of Rs. 791 crore OCCRPS (a1 73% discount) by converting them into COPS.

Y2015, The

company™s gearing was comlortable at 2.2 times (provisional) as anc dune 30, 2007 soing forward,

the manavement ayms o cap the managed gearing at arowd 4.0 4.5 tues, TCRA noles that the
company would however require additional capital of ahout Rs. 300-600 crore over the period

FY2019-FY 2020 to maintain the gearing at tingeted levels.

Kedwra Capital is expected w0 infuse further equily of around Rso 125 crore in Q31

o [airly diversified geograpbically with presence across [3 states and Union Territories
Spandana's portiolio is adequately diversified with Madhya Pradesh comtiibuting 21.3% of the oan
book as an June 30, 2017, followed by Orissa (21..2%), Karmataka (20.0%) and Maharashtra (175.6%)
Uhe district level concentration is also moderte i relation to peers with top 5 districts constituting,
2.7% ol the company’s toial portl

lie as on fune 30, 2017

«  Comlorlable profitability indicators - Tor FYZ017, the campany’s net profitabiliy' {adjusted to
the AP portfolioy was comtortable at 3.6%. Spandana’s operating elficiencies nre expectad o Hnprove
zoing forward with improvement in scale; operating expenses as @ proportion ol managed i
(adjusted Tor the AP portfolio) steod at 6.5% in FY 2017 (5.3% provisional for QUEY2018). Spandana
s also ereated provisions ol Rs 455 crare on ¢

count ol the overdues post demonetisniion and

frrther s, 4.0 crore in QTEY 2008, Considering the steady decline observed in the overdues in recent
months and the current pravisions made, incremental provisioning requirement is expeered 1o be
moderate. [CRA expects the profitability indicators to reman healthy with the growth in poritolio;
however, mahitaiing operating efficiencics at optimal levels and sncrementil credits costs at low
levels would be crucial. [he company's overall profitability in the past was supported by its optimal
cost struebire, reversals o provisionowrite offs (made post the AP crisis) and tax benelit hecause of
the accumulaizd losses
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= Adeguate internal controls and manitoring systems [or the current seale of sperations — Th

company has a separate inmtemal audil and sk macagement team. Spariba andertakes operationil,
financial arcd lri};m_l an FINMC solutions it nl
uses Microsofl Business Intetligence tool for porttolio monitoring and avalysis. For all Tomn
appleations, Spandina undertakes credit bureau checks centrally end also underaxes house visits and

cd aucits, The company s 1T svatem s base tsiso

ventret tsed ele-calling ut the presdisburse nznt stage o vertly the aithenticity of applicat ons, The
company undertihes tormighty callections. The overall syatems and processes o lowed by the
compaity e adeguate B ts corrent scale of operations

Credit weaknesses

= Deterioration in asset quality post demonetisation - As oo Seplember 30, 20060 the company had g
i ek 1o Y. 1%

mation, However sl improveoent i curency cirenlation and the

sood asset quality profile with O+ dpd (ron-AF) ar (3%, winch steeply incre i

Decembe 30, 2016 post dey

company's focused collections ciforts, the 0 dpd steadily decressed 1o 7 8% as on Mareh 31, 2017
and 5.3% as on hune 30, 2017, The 90 dpd stood at 519 as endune 30, 2007, which s ata lowe
level than the prevailing industry wvernze. TCRA notes that the 00 portliolio in absolute quantum aluo
reduzed steadily Trom about Rs. 1015 crore &5 an Muarch 31, 2017 6 Rs. 89,8 crare as or July 15,
2017,

o Ability to mumige politicul, conmunat and other risks in the microfinance sector = The
mizrofiance industey 15 prove to sovio-political amd operativnal nska, which conld negatively mpact
its operaticns and thius fnaacizl position. Flowever, a ceographically diversitied portiolio would
mitipate these nsks to some extent as such issves have lurgely been vegion specific <o D Spandong’s
ability to on-board borrowers with good crecit history, recruit and retain amployees, especially in

vicw ol the atirition observed at the Feld level and ¢ md o new zeogrphies would be key oo

manaaing the vigh ywowih

= Ability to diversily the funding profile adequately to scale up operations - Spandana’s
borrowings coustiinted 80% o7 its total barrowines of s, 1,345 crare as on Tuly 31, 2017, wl
70% of the tatal horrowings are from bank loins (o 3 binksy avatled ot the time ot C DR exit; the
remaining JO% of the total borrowings are 150m a lew privide-sector banks and some SR 7Co JTCRA
rotes that the company would require sizeable funding in relation (o the envisaged portiolio growth.
Geing torward, therctore t is cnitical tor the company to diversily ils Tunding sources (¢ sectrg
funding in a tmely manner, commensurate with the envisaged portfolio growth, wiiile maintaining a
comfortble liqu dity profile,

Analytieal approach: Forariving at the ratings, IORA buc appl ed s ative methodologios as indicane!

belaw.

Liunks to applicable criterin;
ICRA s Credit Rating Methodology for Non-Bankoe Flioance Comypianies

About the company:

Spandana Spheorty Financia Limted (Spandana; was incorpored in 2003 as a non-banking, financial
company (NBIFC) and ook over the microtinance operations ¢f Spandans, a now governmenial
organisations started by Ms. Padmaja Reddy in 1908, Tle company was classified as a non-han<ing
Hrancial company — microlinance institution (NBFC - MED 1h 2005, Followinz the microt nauee crisis in
Anddhra Pradesh (AP, Spandasa entered inte a Master Restiucturing Agreement (MRA) g5 a put of the
corparite debl restructuring (CORY with s lenders in Sepremocr 200 Tteited the COR in April 20107
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alter a fresh cyuiy fovestment led by Kedaara Capial Investment Manapers Limied” (Kedaara Capital)
and bresh funding from three banks, The key sharcholders in the company as on July 3E 007 ona dibated

basis are Keduara Capital (33.5%0). IV Pinancial Lid group (9.5%) and the company's erstwhile promoter

Ms. Reddy (17.7%). who continues to be the Managing Director.

As on dune 382017 the company hadl operahions in 13 sties and nnion teritories spanning across (98

districts with atoal loan portlohe oulstanding of Re 1,755 crore. The active member base and nimber of

credit sssistants stoad at 100 Likh and 2220 respechively ason Tane 30 2017
During FY 2017, Spandana reported a net protit of Rs, 529 crore on an assel base of Rs. 2,413.2 crore as
an Narch 31, 2007 as comparad with a net profit of Rs. 243.2 crore thuine Y2016 on an asset base ol

Rs. 2,009 9 crare as on March 31, 2016,

Key Financial Indicators (Audiled)

| Y2016 FY:

Net Interest Income B | 21181 1675
Profit before tax | 2432 - 76
Profit atter tax : - | 243.2 | \‘U_
Loan advances tincluding non vielding old AT portiolo) _ ~ LOI8R | 20906
Total nssets 2.000,0 24132

[8.0%

| 18.0% 19,0% |
Yo Nel Interest Margin / Average Lol nssets DN 7.2%
YaNet Profit/ Average ofal assets i11.9% 2. 3%
Y Return on Net Worth V3.5%% | 152.0%
n i - . ——— .
% O() Li|‘:d 1. U% 6.0
2 30+ dpd 0 1% 1.5%
% Nl NPAs ) - j 0.1% | 1.0Y |
2% Net NPA Net worth | 0,20 | 0.9% !
Noto- Amonnts in Rs. crore

Whale the conpamy's financial parameters consuder e ran-vilding old AP povtfolin of abow Ry SOG crore waich bos
FOES prrovvtsaon caver, i opecalional pariomer s da not consider s porgoliv

Newree Spooedana, 'CUA research

Status of nen-cooperation with previous CRA: Notapplicable

Any other information: NMotapplicable

fioman papecial puepose vetncle Ted WKpetcnpmge= 1 imtid l' |
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Rating history for last three years:

Lable: - -
Chronology of Rating History

Current Riting (KFY2018) for the pist 3 yeat
e pust 3 years

SNi | Instrument —

. Rated :||n|\lllli | =
Tv July 2018 FY2007 1 FY20106 | Y2013
B Type (Rs. erore) | uly 201 | | | FY20 1 Y2015
allocated bank N RABIR
| Unallocated bant LM iefm S00.00 [T AJBH

(Suatle) |
[ICRA |G-
{(Stable)

| facilites

:\\.‘\'I SOV ll;l e

L.org lerm 3000

lebaniure programimg

Complexity level of the rited instrument:
[CRA has classibed variows instrumenis dased on their coplaxity as "Suople”, "Conmplex™ and “Hiehly
Complex™. The clvsibicntion of instrorents necording (o (Peir complexity Tevels is avalable oo the

websile www e
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Annexure-|

[rstroment Details

\ Date ot \ . ! :
Coupon | Maturity | Rated Amount Current Rating and
[nstiument Issuance /

: [ ate ate Rs. crore - N
Sunction | Rate Date (Rs. crore) _ Outlool

I Ui los \!;'\I_!\u-_}',; - - ’
: 00 010 ICRA BB R stable
lacilitics [TCRAIBBR-{stable)

Mon-convertible . R
i A e | » - 30.00 |ICRA|BBE-(stable)
aegue cp .
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Cantact Details

Amilyat Contacls

. Rohit Inmamdar Mr. A M Karthik Mr. Vivekunandan L
O G4 4596 4308 T A G2 UG
) abarthik@icaindia.con, Lvivekmnanda caticraing e

Relationship Cantact

Al 1 Shivakumen
=91 22 6114 3406

shivakwmar@icra nciz.com

ADGuE FERA T iled

L™ Lo was sef upon w leacing finaoaialvesiment instiotons conmereinl broks i
I 1EA Toud was sef wy 9% hy leading fin 17 menl st | i I
Hncial seovicos compaliics as an indepeadent and poosesionl invesboent el e O edit
Ranng Apercy

Foday, [CTEA and s sabosfdiaries rapcthey fonms the TORACC onip ol Compaaies Looup 1ICHA) CRN - a
Public Limared Courpany. witli its snoces hsted on the Beanbay stoek Tedanee and the atonsl Sl
Ixeltanpge  The inteoational Credit Fading Ageoncy Maody s lvesiors Soovve 0 10OA S Tarpest
alinrehaldet

Formore e fommatian, visl wy w.icrain
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[CRA Limiled

CORPORATTE OFFICE
Wilding Mo. §, ™ Tlnor, Tawer AL DLF Cyber Cily, Phase T Cronepon 120002
Telr =00 1204345300 Fax: =91 124 405014
Ematl: iorecicrsindincon, Websile: www wein

REGISTERED OFTICE
1103, Kailash Butlding, 1™ Floor; 26 Knsturba Gandhi Marg: New Dethi 11000
Fel: 901 T 2335 7940-50; Fasxc #5111 233570 14

Branches: Muambai: Tel & (91 22) 233 104673 V62708687, Fax: = (91 22y M3V 1390 Cheanai: Tel |
(O ) 2438 UAYORSYRO8H, 233 0727 32033264, s = (91 44y 2434 166 b Kollata: Tel « (91 33
2ORT BE3Q 28T G617/ 2283 14117 2280 DOOK, Tax « (91 33) 2287 0728 Bangalore: Tel + (91 8113 2559
JA01A4049 TFax « (91 80) 559 2065 Almedabad: Tel « (QF 79) 2658 402475049/ 2008, Fax « (9] 70)
655 4924 Hyderabad: Tel +(91 400 2373 S0617251, Fax 4+ (91 40) 2371 5152 Pane: Tel + (91 20)

N2 0E94/95/96, Fax + (91 20) 553 9731

CCapyrieht, 2007 JCRA Limited AL Ripls Reserved
Comttents iy be vsed Treely with due scknow ledgement o 1URA

sell or holil the rated debn mstrumems (CRA eatings are silipeet i

1CRA mtngs should net be tealed as recommendation 1o buy
i i rabings A ICRA rating is s symbdic dicator of ICRA"S cument

| peocess of su cillance, which may lead to revis

vith relerenve W the instramem

i

wpinton on s 1 ity ot the ssuer cancerned 10 imely see

Gt websile Teraan o conthe! mv LCRA office for iy o EIVA ptings culsbanding

ated, Meage vigil
A1 kit contained hereimn las heen olamed by [CRA Trom snnrees beleved| Iy it he acewrite amd peliable, meluding
wled by it While

(he dniormabion herein s e, soch wlomution e provided "o 0 witho iy

the iated igguer, ICRA howsver hus not comfieted any andit o e raled 1ssuer oc of the wlanmeion pie

easiible care has been taken to 2nsue
warvanly of any kind, and 10 RA in particular. makes no representation or waraily, express or impl
Also, ICRA ar any of s proup vompatics may have provided services oiher
pined ferein mual be consteoed solely as stiements of opinion, and 1CRA

A5 1o e weeuraey,

timeliness o completeness ol any ek mformation
i vabnp (o e issuee rated. AN informption cos

s ineutied by tsdes Trancany use of this piblieation oy it contenls

shall st b hiable Tor any losses
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ANNEXURE HI: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

CL/MUM/L7-18/D1:13/310
Cligber 11,2017

To,

Aditya Grandhi

Spandann Sphoorly Financial Limited

Plot No: - 31 & 32, Ramky Sclanium Towers,
Tower A Ground 'loor, Financial Dist,
Nanakramguda, Tyderabad TG 500032

Dear Sir.

Consent (o act as Trustee lor Scaior, Sceared, Listed, Rated, Redeemable, Non-
Convertible Dlebentures aggregating upto Rs. I8 “‘rores to be issned by your
Company.

This is with relercnce o the discussions in respect of appointment of Calalyst Trusteeship
Limited o act as Debenture Trustee for the Senior, Sceured, Listed, Rated, Redeemable
non-convertible debentures aggregating upto Rs. 18 Crores o be issucd by your Company.
ln this connection. we are agreecable to act as Trustee on the terms and conditions as
mutually agreed between the Trustee and the Cotmpany.

The Company and the Trustee shall enter into relevant trustee agreements and other
necessary documents for the aforesaid issue of NCDs and term loans and ualso agrees &
vudertakes to comply with the provisions of the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Repulations,
1993, SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Sceuritics) Regulations, 2008, SEBL (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as may be amended from
time to time, SEBL Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMIN/G6/2015 dated October 3, 2015 and the
Listing Agrecinent pursuant therefo to be exceuted with Bombay Stock Exchange(BS12Y
National Stock Lxchange(iNSE), the RBI Circular No. RBI/2012-13/560 dated Tune 27,
2013, the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicuble statutes, regulations and
provisions as amended (rom time to time,

We are also agrecable for inclusion o owr pame as trastees in the Company’s olfer
document/disclosure document/ listia; g ! ‘

cufuny other de cul o be fled it the
Swek Exchange(s) or any other authorily as required.

Yours failliully,
We Aceepl the above lerms

For Catalyst Trosteeship Limited ior Spandana Sphoorty Financial
Limited Q
v @ ! A
<\/\ })\\‘ 4 ' N )/
Authorized Signnt()ry Anthorized Signatory

CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED (olmbiarinr ofos b

Munibal @llles Office Mo 85 07, Skl Tu e, B Babid, Munilaal A0 Gel el (002) 4928 0%a s vux 401 (22 4dz 0
Nogd Glfice GOA Howse, Plal N s, Bb i wacd, Priare 411 (8E ol +93 (020) 25200000 Fax =01 (0200) 26260574
Delhd Qs Offles No, 208 2ol (loor, faviabing Hiolie, 1) # Aeth Mara, Mews Ciathl 10 GO Tal 00 A 3UIDHST

Wil e wwwcalalystliiee coarnm

CIM Mo, UZA0pARMIRITPLCI026)  Fal (Lt ste
e Mamibal | Wengalwg | Dul | Sl

Annexure [V: Application Form
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SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIALS LIMITED
CIN: U65929TG2003PLC040648
Apublic limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: March 10, 2003
Registered Olffice: Plot No.3 1 & 32, Ramky Selenium Towers,
Ground Floor, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500032
Tel: 040 - 48126666 / 44386648
Website: www.spandanaindia.com

[ DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. T T T T T 1T 717717

ISSUE OF 18,00,00,000 (EIGHTEEN CRORES)RATED, LISTED, SENIOR, SECURED,
REDEEMABLE, TAXABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURLS OF FACE VALUE OF INR 1/-
(RUPEE ONE ONLY) EACH, AGGREGATING UP TO RS. 18,00,00,000/- (RUPEES EIGHTEEN
CRORES ONLY) ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS (THE “ISSUE”).

RS, /- (RUPEES .......cooviviiiiiiiiiniin (RUPEELS ............oeels ), FULLY PAID UP
FOR CASH AT PARTO THE FACE VALUE

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number ol Debentures................ Inwords ..o
Amount Rs.

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transterred to Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) _(In words)

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET

CITY

_PIN] | PHONE - [ rax [

APPLICANT'S PAN/GIR NO.
IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

6l
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WE ARE (x) COMPANY () OTHERS () SPECIFY

We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk Factors
described in the Memorandum and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We bind ourselves
to these Terms and Conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We request you to please
place our name(s) on the Register of Holders.

Name of the Authorised | Designation Signature
_Signatory(ies) _ i

Applicant’s
Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form. Details of
my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL () CDSL ()
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAMEL
DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account : Beneficiary Bank Name:
Account No:
(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Dralt / | IFSC Code:

Pay Ovder / Direct Credit / ECS /| Branch:
NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT _DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafls are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Information Memorandum is provided by the
Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer, and other intermediaries and their
agents and advisors associated with this Issue. We confirm that we have for the purpose of investing in these
Debentures carried oul our own due diligence and made our own decisions with respect Lo investment in these
Debentures and have not relied on any representations made by anyone other than the [ssuer, it any.

We understand that: 1) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned above
would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) the Applicant must ensure that the sequence of
names as mentioned in the Applicalion Form matches the sequence of name held with our Depository
Participant, iii) if the names of the Applicantin this application are not identical and also not in the same order
as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant or if the Debentures cannot
be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the Company shall be entitled at its sole
discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in physical form.

We understand that we are asswming on our own account, all risk ol loss thai-miay-eccur or be suffered by us
including as to the returns on and/or the sale value of the Debentures. WeLfrl_"_d_u‘.r_l_u]\"__cffthgs,t upon sale or transfer to
< %

|
nt

62
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subsequent investor or transferee (“Transferee™), we shall convey all the terms and conditions contained herein
and in this Information Memorandum to such Transferee. In the event ol any Transferee (including any
intermediate or final holder of the Debentures) suing the Issuer (or any person acting on its behalf) we shall
indemnity the Issuer (and all such persons acting on its behalf) and also hold the Issuer and each of such person
harmless in respect of any claim by any Transferee.

Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OIFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT _ DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note . Cheque and Drafls are subject to realisation)

"-(TEAR HERE)---
- ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP
| (To be filled in by Applican)SERIAL NO.  ~ T T I T [T 1T 1 717

Received from

Address

Cheque/Draft/UTR  # Drawn  on for
Rs. on account of application of ﬁ_ Debenture




ANNEXURE N+ (AST AUDITED FINANCIAL ATATEMEN TS

_— P o 1 ) 14th Floor, The Ruby
N Y A FD 8 O % L. ; 29 Senapati Bapat Marg
Dadar (West)
Mumbai-400 028, India
Tel :+91 22 6192 0000
Fax :+91 22 6192 1000

-hartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited (the
"Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2017, its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1, a
‘,\ statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAE-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camnac Street, Block ‘C’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

@

()]

©

(G))

(@

®

@

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement deait with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure 2 to this
report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 4.30 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided the disclosures in Note 4.31 to the financial statements as to the
holding of Specified Bank Notes ('SBNs') on November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 as well as
dealings in SBNs during the period from November 9, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on our
audit procedures and relying on the management representation regarding the holding and nature
of cash transactions, including those in SBNs, we report that these disclosures are in accordance
with the books of account maintained by the Company and as produced before us for verification.
However, as stated in Note 4.31 (b) to the financial statements and as represented to us by the
management, the Company has received an amount aggregating Rs.56.41 crore from transactions
which were not permitted.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

( \Charter

g_l

ed Accountants

< =]

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership No. 102102

Mumbai

June 15, 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading *Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Re: Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited

(O (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(©) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the
requirements under clause 3(iXc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b)
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

w) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(D) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have
not generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though the delays in deposit
have not been serious.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature Amount under Amount paid Period to which | Forum where dispute
Statute of dues dispute (Rs.)* (Rs.)** its relates is pending
Chapter v of the Service 57,130,919 9,926,956 | Financial year Customs, Excise &
Finance Act, 1994 | Tax from 2006-07 Service Tax Appellate
to 2014-15 Tribunal (CESTAT")

* Excluding interest and penalty, as applicable
** Paid under protest

(viii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has delayed in
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and banks during the year aggregating
Rs.6,832,124,367 which were discharged by the Company before March 31, 2017 and accordingly, no

/ dues are outstanding as at the reporting date. The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from
L the government or dues to debenture holders during the year.



LSe 8 Be X

Po ¥

4R 7 ¢ . - -

Chartered Accountants

Spandana Sphoorty Finanical Limited
Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended March 31, 2017 Page 4 of 6

(ix)

&)

(xi)

(xiD

(xiii)

(xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were
gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid and provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Act in respect of the preferential
allotment or private placement of shares during the year. According to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered
as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership No. 102102

Mumbai

June 15, 2017
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 () under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’” of our report of even date

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited
(the “Company") as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financiai reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005
,Chartered Accountants

e ]

e

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Mumbai
June 15, 2017



SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 31,2017

Notes

31-Mar-17
(Rupees)

31-Mar-16
(Rupees)

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital

9,294,662,027

8,113,884,880

Reserves and surplus (3,922,306,249) (6,272,989,319)
5,372,355,778 1,840,895,561
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5,377,313,403 -
Other long term liabilities - 17,636,235
Long-term provisions 8,468,982,179 8,001,321,483
13,846,295,582 8,018,957,718
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 5 10,000,281 -
Other current liabilities 4.7 & 4.3 4,616,766,157 11,022,904,040
Short-term provisions 286,341,225 115,482,854
4,913,107,663 11,138,386,894
TOTAL 24,131,759,023 20,998,240,173
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 66,231,489 121,778,184
Intangible fixed assets 23,849,346 22,905,744
Non-current investments 1,000,000 1,000,000
Loan portfolio 11,166,081,615 8,514,643,108
Other long-term loans and advances 64,693,625 170,776,179
Other non-current assets 22,613,512 20,878,017
11,344,469,587 8,851,981,232
Current assets
Trade receivables 72,941 18,339,713

Cash and bank balances
Loan portfolio

2,901,168,938
9,780,175,123

353,264,361
11,673,626,444

Other short-term loans and advances 30,561,835 14,140,550
Other current assets 75,310,599 86,887,873

12,787,289,436 12,146,258,941
TOTAL 24,131,759,023 20,998,240,173
Summary of significant accounting policies 32,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ICAI Firm registration number : 301003E/E300005 Spandana Sphghirty Financial Limited
( Chartered Accountants
\( Ly | - :
(| ¢ = / ¥
NK Mﬁ; Al Malan
per Shrawan Jalan % Padmaja Gangireddy Abanti Mitra‘/
Partner >/ Managing Director Director

Membership No.102102 . { DIN: 00004842 DIN: 02305893

Rakesh Jhinjharia
Company Secretary
Membership No. F8325

fip =

Place: Mumbai Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 15, 2017 Date: June 15,2017




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Notes
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Revenue
Revenue from operations 4.15 3,714,677,645 3,438,618,524
Other income 4.16 503,561,528 1,288,388,422
Total revenue (I) 4,218,239,173 4,727,006,946
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 4.17 582,959,601 570,872,217
Finance cost 4.18 2,078,810,656 1,294,331,328
Other expenses 4,19 287,529,719 285,617,817
Depreciation and amortization expense 4.8 83,331,208 37,011,072
Provision and write offs 4.20 420,281,147 106,821,766
Total expenses (IT) 3,452,912,331 2,294,654,200
Profit before tax (IIT) = (I)-(II) 765,326,842 2,432,352,746
Tax expenses:

Current tax 235,839,798
Profit for the year 529,487,044 2,432,352,746
Earnings per share

Basic (computed on the basis of total profit for the year) 421 25.95 119.35

Diluted (computed on the basis of total profit for the year) 421 0.65 2.94

Nominal value 10.00 10.00
Summary of significant accounting policies 32
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behglf of the Board of Directors of

_ICAI Firm registration number : 301003E/E300005 Spandana Sp!
| Chartered Accountants

orty Financial Limited
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SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 765,326,842 2,432,352,746
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 83,331,208 37,011,072
Amortization of ancillary borrowing cost (incurred in earlier years) 19,477,762 20,363,239
Amortization of loan processing fee (collected in earlier years) (142,957,844) (86,469,649)
Provision for gratuity 5,200,986 (17,718)
(Profit) / loss on sale of fixed assets (205,004) 9,458,637
Contingent provision against standard assets (57,858,642) 109,267
Provision for non-performing assets 455,336,926 (2,537,023,660)
Portfolio loans written off’ 22,802,863 2,643,736,159
Dividend from mutual funds (16,381,164) (4,629,094)
Excess provisions / liabilities written back (447,855,614) (1,246,242,139)
Other provisions and write offs 10,273,181 33,781,048
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - 350,871
Operating profit before working capital changes 696,491,500 1,302,780,779
Movements in working capital :
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities (825,445,976) 848,765,400
Increase / (decrease) in other long term liabilities - (634,417,393)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 18,266,772 226,785
Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances (701,699,086) (381,706,854)
Decrease / (increase) in other current and non-current assets (7,900,488) 4,068,632
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (820,287,278) 1,139,717,349
(Direct taxes paid) / Refunds - (362,618)
Net cash flow (used in) / from operating activities (A) (820,287,278) 1,139,354,731
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in progress and advances) (28,778,265) (104,073,333)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 255,153 5,447,740
Purchase of current investments (4,593,400,000) (1,790,000,000)
Sale of current investments 4,593,400,000 1,790,000,000
Dividend from mutual funds 16,381,164 4,629,094
Margin money deposits (net) (1,735,495) (1,711,751)
Net cash flow (used in) / from investing activities (B) (13,877,444) (95,708,250)
Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of OCCRPS (including premium on redemption) - (700,404,599)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 1,900,000,050 -
Proceeds from issue of Preference Shares 1,102,270,249 -
Repayment of long-term borrowings (9,187,962,708) (4,160,715,651)
Receipt of long-term borrowings 9,557,761,426 3,579,838,260
Receipt of short-term borrowings 1,010,000,281 -
Repayment of short-term borrowings (1,000,000,000) -
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 3,382,069,298 (1,281,281,990)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 2,547,904,577 (237,635,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 353,264,361 590,899,870
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4.14) 2,901,168,938 353,264,361

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm registration number : 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants
-
"
per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Membership No.102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 15, 2017

For and on be

If of the Board of Directors of
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited

7

Padmaja Gangireddy Abanti Mitra
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00004842 DIN: 02305893

Luaugh Fuoigoue

Rakesh Jhinjhar!
Company Secretary K
Membership No. F8325

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 15, 2017



SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1.

Corporate information

Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited (‘SSFL’ or the ‘Company’) is a public company domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956on March 10, 2003.The
Company was registered as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC-
ND’) with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) and got classified as Non-Banking Financial
Company — Micro Financial Institution (NBFC — MFI) effective April 13, 2015.

The Company is engaged in the business of micro finance providing small value unsecured loans
to low-income clientele in urban and rural areas. The tenure of these loans is generally spread
over one to two years. The Company also provides loans against gold as collateral.

Regulatory and Company updates

a) Background:

The Government of Andhra Pradesh promulgated "The Andhra Pradesh Micro Finance
Institution (Regulation of Money Lending) Ordinance 2010" on October 15, 2010,
subsequently enacted the same as "The Andhra Pradesh Micro Finance Institution (Regulation
of Money Lending) Act, 2011 (Act 1 of 2011)" on December 31, 2010 and notified by
Gazette on January I, 2011 (AP MFI Act"). In compliance with the said Ordinance/Act, the
frequency of the JLG loan repayments in the state of Andhra Pradesh changed from a 'weekly'
to a 'monthly’ basis.

These directions significantly affected the recoveries for all MFIs in Andhra Pradesh,
including the Company, which had a serious impact of the Company's ability to continue its
operations in Andhra Pradesh. Though the AP MFI Act did not directly affect the operations
in other states, the additional funding from the financial institutions was severely restricted.
As a result, the Company incurred substantial losses up to financial year 2012-13, primarily
on account of loan provisioning, and faced liquidity constraints for servicing its loan
borrowings.

Therefore, the Company entered into a Master Restructuring Agreement (MRA) under the
Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) arrangement with its lenders on September 24, 2011.

Further, due to the losses incurred up to financial year 2012-13, the Company was unable to
maintain the minimum amount of net owned funds (‘“NOF”), as defined under section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, to carry on the business of a non-banking financial
institution (‘NBFI’). Also, the Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (‘CRAR’) of the Company
reduced below the minimum percentage prescribed by the RBL

In view of the challenges being faced by the Company, the RBI had given an exemption to
the Company for not maintaining minimum NOF and a regulatory forbearance for not
maintaining minimum CRAR for a period of two years till March 31, 2016 which was
subsequently extended till March 31, 2017 vide RBI letter dated November 30, 2016.

b) Current year updates:
In order to comply with the NOF and CRAR, the Company submitted a settlement proposal to
the CDR — Empowered Group (‘CDR-EG’) and the lenders for pre-closure of its debt and exit
from CDR. Pursuant to an in-principle approval granted by the CDR-EG and the lenders to
the proposal, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with all its lenders dated
March 21, 2017 (the ‘Agreement’), the salient features of which are as given below:

i. The Company to settle its dues in respect of the restructured term loans, priority debt and
corporate guarantees (issued pursuant to portfolio assignment transactions) in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement.




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to

financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

ii. The Company to pay an additional fee of 1% on OCCRPS outstanding to the existing
OCCRPS holders.

ili. A new investor to purchase the outstanding Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (‘OCCRPS’) from the existing OCCRPS holders at an
agreed discount to the face value after converting them into compulsorily convertible
preference shares (‘CCPS?).

iv. The new investor to also infuse additional capital in the Company by way of subscription
to its equity shares and CCPS.

Thereafter, the CDR-EG in its meeting held on March 29, 2017 approved the Company’s exit
from CDR mechanism on fulfillment of conditions stipulated in the minutes of CDR-EG
which inter alia included discharging of all liabilities as per the Agreement and ensuring the
settlement of the OCCRPS by the new investor as envisaged in the Agreement. Since, the
Company was able to fulfill all conditions stipulated in the Agreement and the CDR-EG
minutes prior to March 31, 2017, it stands exited from CDR as at March 31, 2017.

With the conversion of existing OCCRPS into CCPS and issuance of fresh equity shares and
CCPS to the new investor, as mentioned above, the Company stands compliant with the
regulatory requirements of NOF and CRAR as at March 31, 2017.

3. Basis of preparation

a)

b)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these
financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified
under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016and
provisions of the RBI as applicable to a NBFC-MFI and Systemically Important NBFC-ND
(NBFC-ND-8I). The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under
historical cost convention, except as detailed in note 3.2.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with
those of previous year, except for the changes in accounting policies explained in point 3.1.

3.1 Changes in accounting policies

a)

b)

During the year, pursuant to clarification issued by RBI on October 14, 2016,the Company
has changed its accounting policy for recognizing the ancillary borrowing costs in the period
in which they are incurred against amortizing them over the tenure of the borrowings.
Accordingly, finance costs for the year are higher and profit before tax for the year is lower
by Rs.232,699,652.

During the year, pursuant to clarification issued by RBI on October 14, 2016, the Company
has changed its accounting policy for recognizing the loan processing fee collected from the
borrowers in the period in which it is collected against amortizing it over the tenure of the
loan. Accordingly, the loan processing fee income and profit before tax for the year are higher
byRs.118,247,834.




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

3.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a)

b)

d)

€)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Revenue recognition

i. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and revenue can be reliably measured.

ii. Interest income on loans given is recognized under the internal rate of return method.
Income or any other charges on non-performing asset is recognized only when realized
and any such income recognized before the asset became non-performing and remaining
unrealized is reversed.

—_

iii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on a time proportion accrual basis

taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

iv. Loan processing fees coliected from members are recognized on an upfront basis at the
time of disbursement of loan.

v. Amounts received against loans written-off are recognized on receipt basis.
vi. All other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at costnet of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use.

Depreciation

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipments provided on a written down value method
at the ratesarrived at based on useful life of the assets prescribed under Schedule II of the
Act, which also represents the estimate of the useful life of the assets by the management.

ii. Fixed assets costing up to Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

~

Intangible assets

Software expenditure is capitalized in accordance with Accounting Standard 26 “Intangible
Assets” and amortised using the written down value method at a rate of 40% per gnnum.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

f

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If
no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

g) Leases (where the Company is the lessee)

Leases where the lessor effectively retains, substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are

recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
h) Foreign currency transactions

i. All foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction.

ii. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the
close of the financial year.

iil. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of
Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in the previous financial statements, are recognized
as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

i) Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure
when an employee renders the related service.

ii. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in
which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. The service rules of the Company do not provide for the carry forward of the accumulated
leave balance and leaves to credit of employees are encashed periodically at average gross
salary.

/,//‘: O o
7 O N
//, - AV




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1)

k)

Income taxes

iii.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961, enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating
to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss.

. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income

and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing
differences for earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there
is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against
future taxable profits.

. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The

Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no
longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be realized. Any
such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss
as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the
extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by
way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.”
The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes
down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes)
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unlegs they
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss
per share are included.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on
the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

m) Contingent liabilities

P)

Q)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and
cash in hand, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year
from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried in
the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment
basis except for investments in the units of mutual funds in the nature of current investments
that have been valued at the net asset value declared by the mutual fund in respect of each
particular scheme, in accordance with the NBFC Prudential Norms. Long-term investments
are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline
other than temporary in the value of the investments. On disposal of an investment, the
difference between the carrying amount and disposal proceeds are charged or credited to the
statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.All borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Classification of loan portfolio

Unsecured loan portfolio (excluding the loan portfolio disbursed prior to January 1,2012 in
the state of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana) is classified as standard and non-performing
assets in accordance with Chapter [X of the Master Direction —~Non-Banking Financial
Company —Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016(‘the NBFC Master Directions’}.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

All other loans and advances are classified as standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets
in accordance with Chapter V of the NBFC Master Directions.

r) Provisioning for loan portfolio

i. Unsecured loan portfolio, excluding the loan portfolio disbursed prior to January 1, 2012
in the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana is provided for in accordance with Chapter
IX of the NBFC MasterDirections which require the total provision to be higher of:

(a) 1% of the outstanding loan portfolio; or

(b) 50% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for more than 90 days and
less than 180 days and 100% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for
180 days or more.

ii. All other loans and advances (comprising the secured loan portfolio and the loan portfolio
disbursed prior to January 1, 2012 in the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana)are
provided for in accordance with Chapter Vof the NBFC Master Directions.

iii. In addition to the provision created as stated in (i) and (ii) above, loans considered
irrecoverable in the opinion of the Company,are fully provided for / written off!
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SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees)
4.1 Share capital
Authorized
Equity shares
900,000,000 (Previous year: 900,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 9,000,000,000 9,000,000,000
Preference shares
1,100,000,000 (Previous year: 1,100,000,000) preference shares of Rs.10 each 11,000,000,000 11,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
Equity shares
28,449,393 (Previous year 20,380,767) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 284,493,930 203,807,670
Total equity share capital 284,493,930 203,807,670

(a)

(b)

Preference shares
Nil (Previous year: 791,007,721) 0.001% Optionally convertible cumulative redeemable preference - 7,910,077,210
shares (OCCRPS) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up [refer note (c) below]

791,007,721 (Previous year: Nil) Class B 0.001% Compulsory Convertible preference shares
(CCPS) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up [refer note (c) below]

7,910,077,210
110,000,008 (Previous year: Nil) Class A 0.001% Compulsory Convertible preference shares (CCPS)
of Rs. 10 each fully paid up [refer note (b) below] 1.100.000.080 -
1,135,085 (Previous year: Nil) Series C 0.001% Optionally Convertible Redeemable preference
shares (OCRPS) of Rs.10 each Rs.0.04 Called Up [refer note (d) below] 45.403 )
2,83,771 (Previous year: Nil) FY18 Series A 0.001% Optionally Convertible Redeemable preference
shares (OCRPS) of Rs.10 each Rs.0.04 Called Up [refer note (d) below] 11.351 =
2,83,771 (Previous year: Nil) FY18 Series B 0.001% Optionally Convertible Redeemabie preference
shares (OCRPS) of Rs.10 each Rs.0.04 Called Up [refer note (d) below] 11.351
2,83,771 (Previous year: Nil) FY19 Series A 0.001% Optionally Convertible Redeemable preference
shares (OCRPS) of Rs.10 each Rs.0.04 Called Up [refer note (d) below] 11351 .
2,83,771 (Previous year: Nil) FY19 Series B 0.001% Optionally Convertible Redeemable preference
shares (OCRPS) of Rs.10 each Rs.0.04 Called Up [refer note (d) below] 11.351
Total preference share capital 9,010,168,097 7,910,077,210
9,294,662,027 8,113,884,880

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares of par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms / rights attached to Class A CCPS

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company issued 110,000,008 Class A CCPS of Rs.10 each fuily paid-up. The Class A CCPS shall rank
pari-passu with other preference shares. The CCPS shall carry a dividend of 0.001% payable annually in proportion to the total number of equity
shares on and as converted basis. The dividend will accrue on cumulative basis and shall be due and payable upon conversion of CCPS into equity
shares. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The holder of Class A CCPS shall not be entitled to any voting rights in the Company.

Each holder of Class A CCPS has to mandatorily convert its preference shares into equity shares at the end of the 10" year from the date of issue,
viz., March 31, 2017. The holder can also convert the CCPS before the 10" year, by giving 5 days prior conversion notice to the Company. The
Company will issue such number of equity shares as derived by conversion formula given below (subject to adjustment in equity shares capital that
has occurred upto the date of conversion on account of issue of bonus shares, stock split, sub-division, consolidation or any similar corporate
action):

Number of Class A CCPS proposed to be converted x Face value of Class A CCPS
Fair market value of equity shares of the Company as on the date of acquisition of Class A CCPS
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4.1

Share capital (continued)

©

@

Terms / rights attached to Class B CCPS

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has converted the OCCRPS outstanding as at March 31, 2016 into Class B CCPS. The Class
B CCPS shall rank pari-passu with other preference shares. The Class B CCPS shall carry a dividend of 0.001% payable annually in proportion to
the total number of equity shares on and as converted basis. The dividend will accrue on cumulative basis and shall be due and payable upon
conversion of CCPS into equity shares. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Any dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The holder of Class B CCPS shall not be entitled to
any voting rights in the Company.

Each holder of Class B CCPS has to mandatorily convert its preference shares into equity shares at the end of the 10" year from the date of issue,
viz., March 31, 2017. The holder can also convert the CCPS before the 10 year, by giving 5 days prior conversion notice to the Company. The
Company will issue such number of equity shares as derived by conversion formula given below (subject to adjustment in equity shares capital that

have occurred upto the date of conversion on account of issue of bonus shares, stock split, sub-division, consolidation or any similar corporate
action):

Number of Class B CCPS proposed to be converted x 2.7
Fair market vatue of equity shares of the Company as on the date of acquisition of Class B CCPS

Terms / rights attached to OCRPS

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company issued 2,270,169 OCRPS of Rs.10 each, at a premium of Rs.225.48, out of which Rs.0.04
with premium of Rs. 0.96 per OCRPS was called up. These OCRPS (Series A, B and C) shall carry a dividend of 0.001% payable annually in
proportion to the total number of equity shares on and as converted basis. The dividend will accrue on cumulative basis and shall be due and payable
upon conversion into equity share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of OCRPS is entitled to exercise voting rights at all
meetings of shareholders of the Company on a proportionate ‘as converted’ basis to the extent of the amount actually paid up by the holder thereof
on such OCRPS. ¥

The Company will issue one equity share for each OCRPS held after taking into account any adjustment to the equity share capital that has occurred
up to the date of conversion by way of issue of bonus shares, stock split, sub-division, consolidation or any similar corporate action. The terms of
conversion of OCRPS into equity shares and payment of remaining calls is provided in the table below:

Class of Shares Faymentofibalancersubscription Conversion into equity shares

amount
Series C Any time post March 31,2017
FY18 Series A Based on pre-defined profitability levels R . .
FYI18 Series B in respect of FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 To be cfmvened immediately upon being
FY19 Series A and FY 2019-20 (as applicable in terms of|fully paid up.
FY19 Series B the Promoter Subscription Agreement)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

4.1  Share capital (continued)
(e)  Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount _ Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 20,380,767 203,807,670 20,380,767 203,807,670
Issued during the year 8,068,626 80,686,260
Qutstanding at the end of the year 28,449,393 284,493,930 20,380,767 203,807,670
(f)  Reconciliation of the number of OCCRPS at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount _ Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 791,007,721 7,910,077,210 807,615,809 8,076,158,090
Issued during the year < - = -
Converted / redeemed during the year (refer note below) 791,007,721 7,910,077,210 16,608,088 166,080,880
QOutstanding at the end of the year - - 791,007,721 7,910,077,210
Note on redemption of OCCRPS:
The redemption of OCCRPS in the previous years had been made out of the profits for the respective years. Since, such profits were inadequate for setting off the
accumulated brought forward losses, such redemption of OCCRPS was not in compliance with the provisions of section 55 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, the Company filed an application with the Regional Director of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) for compounding of offence under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act in respect of all redemptions made upto March 31, 2016. Pursuant to the order dated June 30, 2016 received by the Company, the
offence was compounded for period upto March 31, 2016 upon payment of a total compounding fee of Rs.30,000.
(2) Reconciliation of the number of CCPS Class B at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount _ Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Converted during the year 791,007,721 7,910,077,210 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 791,007,721 7,910,077,210 - =
(h)  Reconciliation of the number of CCPS Class A at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - E E -
Issued during the year 110,000,008 1,100,000,080 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 110,000,008 1,100,000,080 - -
(i)  Reconciliation of the number of OCRPS Series C at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Issued during the year (partly paid-up) 1,135,085 45,403 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,135,085 45,403 - =
(i)  Reconciliation of the number of OCRPS FY18 Series A at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 3 o e
Issued during the year (partly paid-up) 283,771 11,351
Qutstanding at the end of the year 283,771 11,351 - -
(k)  Reconciliation of the number of OCRPS FY18 Series B at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount _ Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Issued during the year (partly paid-up) 283,771 11,351 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 283,771 11,351 -
TSN
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SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise siated)

4.1  Share capital (continued)
(I)  Reconciliation of the number of OCRPS FY19 Series A at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount __ Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - & - -
Issued during the year (partly paid-up) 283,771 11,351 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 283,771 11,351 - -
{m) Reconciliation of the number of OCRPS FY19 Series B at the beginning and at the end of the year :
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year S - -
Issued during the year (partly paid-up) 283,771 11,351 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 283,771 11,351 - -
(n)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Name of the shareholder * Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Kangchenjunga Limited 7,896,937 27.76% - -
IM Financial Trustee Company Private Limited 6,582,276 23.14% 6,582,276 32.30%
Padmaja Gangireddy 6,194,261 21.77% 6,194,261 30.39%
Valiant Mauritius Partners FDI Limited 3,981,780 14.00% 3,981,780 19.54%
Vijaya Sivarami Reddy Vendidandi 1,491,483 5.24% 1,479,983 7.26%
(0)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of OCCRPS in the Company:
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Name of the shareholder * Number of shares % of holding  Number of shares % of holding
ICICI Bank Limited = - 98,068,750 12.40%
Small Industries Development Bank of India - 93,155,000 11.78%
Syndicate Bank - - 65,162,500 8.24%
Industrial Development Bank of India - - 43,265,000 5.47%
(p) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of CCPS (Class A) in the Company:
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Name of the shareholder * Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Kangch ga Limited 107,659,360 97.87% - -
(q) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of CCPS (Class B) in the Company:
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Name of the shareholder * Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holdi
Kangchenjunga Limited 774,176,271 97.87% = -
(r)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of OCRPS (Series A, B and C) in the Company:

31-Mar-17
Number of shares

holder *

Name of the shar

% of holding

31-Mar-16

Number of shares % of holding

Padmaja Gangireddy 2,270,169

100.00%

* As per the records of the Company, including register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 {Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees)
4.2 Reserves and surplus

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements 761,321,245 824,847,785
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares 1,819,313,790 -
Add: Premium on issue of OCRPS 2,179,362 -
Less: Utilization towards premium on redemption of OCCRPS - (63,526,540)
Closing balance 2,582,814,397 761,321,245
General reserve 23,280,656 23,280,656

Capital redemption reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Closing balance

Statutory reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Amount transferred from surplus to profit and loss
Closing balance

Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Profit for the year after tax

Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (@ 20% of profit after tax as required by Section 45-

IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Less: Dividend on OCCRPS *

Less: Transfer to Capital redemption reserve
Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss

Total reserves and surplus

* Includes dividend distribution tax.

Note on appropriation towards dividend:

1,526,922,794

1,360,841,914
166,080,880

1,526,922,794

1,526,922,794

1,499,077,389
105,897,409

1,012,606,840
486,470,549

1,604,974,798

1,499,077,389

(10,083,591,403)
529,487,044
(105,897,409)

(11,863,392,720)
2,432,352,746
(486,470,549)

(297,126) s
- (166,080,880)
(9,660,298,894)  (10,083,591,403)
(3,922,306,249) (6,272,989,319)

Since the opening reserves of the Company in respect of the previous year were negative, the Company was not eligible to declare /
pay any dividend in terms of section 123 of the Act read with the rules framed there under. Therefore, no appropriation towards the
OCCRPS dividend was made by the Company and the dividend paid was treated as an advance. In the current financial year, the
Company filed an application with the Regional Director of the MCA for compounding of offence (in respect of payments made in the
absence of distributable surplus), under the relevant provisions of the Act. Pursuant to the order dated March 22, 2017 received by the
Company, the offence has been compounded upon payment of a total compounding fee of Rs.35,000 and accordingly, the entire
amount of dividend declared or paid upto March 31, 2016 has been appropriated from the reserves in the current year.
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(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Non-current portion

Current portion

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)
4.3 Long-term borrowings
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) 5,377,313,403 4,180,448,023 7,553,031,694
Indian rupee loan from financial institutions (secured) - - - 1,222,023,008
Indian rupee loan from non-banking financial companies (secured) - - - 412,908,006
5,377,313,403 - 4,180,448,023 9,187,962,708
Above amount includes
Secured borrowings 5,377,313,403 - 4,180,448,023 9,187,962,708
Amount disclosed under the head “Other current liabilities” (refer note 4.7) - (4,180,448,023) (9,187,962,708)
Net amount 5,377,313,403 - - -
(a) During the year the Company has defaulted in repayment of borrowings (including principal and interest) of Rs.6,83,21,24,367. However, the Company does not have any
continuing defaults in repayment of borrowings as at the reporting date.
(b) The long term borrowings are secured by exclusive charge on book debts to the extent of 110% of principal.
Terms of repayment of borrowings
Repayment frequency / Rate of Interest Due within 1 year Due in 1 to 3 Years
No. of No. of
installments Amount install t Amount
Monthly / 12% to 13% 12 589,852,212 12 589,852,214
9 1,876,310,143 12 2,501,746,857
9 1,714,285,668 12 2,285,714,332
(c) During the previous year, in view of the settlement transaction then proposed, the Company had expected to pre-close its debt outstanding as at March 31, 2016 within
twelve months of the balance sheet date and exit from CDR. Accordingly, the entire balance of borrowings outstanding as at March 31, 2016 was considered as current
maturities under "Other current liabilities”.
Non-current portion Current portion
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) {Rupees) (Rupees) {Rupees)
44 Other long term liabilities
Unamortized loan processing fees - 17,636,235 -
17,636,235 - -
4.5 Provisions
Provision for gratuity (net of contribution) (refer note 4.25) 5,979,439 778,453 -
Provision for Tax - - 235,839,798 -
Contingent provision against standard assets (refer note 4.27) 12,208,993 5,086,208 50,501,427 115,482,854
Provision for non-performing assets (refer note 4.27) 8,450,793,747 7,995,456,822 - -
8,468,982,179 8,001,321,483 286,341,225 115,482,854
4.6 Short-term borrowings
Loans and advances from related parties (Unsecured) 10,000,281
- > 10,000,281
4.7 Other current liabilities
Employee benefits payable 80,972,209 95,977,532
Payable towards asset assignment transactions - 5,906,462 768,893,675
Expenses payable - - 169,956,623 31,914,815
Creditors for capital goods 420,000 5,019,924
Other payables - 24,061,030 28,017,634
Other liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 4.3) - - 4,180,448,023 9,187,962,708
Unfructified service tax liability [net of amount paid under protest 124,303,097 117,319,300
Rs.9,926,956 (Previous year 9,906,050)]
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 10,898,507 11,048,709
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - - 642,333,110
Statutory dues payable - 19,800,206 9,095,024
Unamortized income
Unamortized loan processing fees - 125,321,609
- 4,616,766,157 11,022,904,040




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

4.8.1

4.8.2

(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Lease hold Furniture & Office Vehicles Computers & Total
improvements Fixtures Equipment Printers

Gross block

At April 1, 2015 - 85,004,259 35,372,893 3,761,839 151,694,983 275,833,974

Addition 92,198,325 23,860,393 977,440 - 4,348,757 121,384,915

Disposals - 68,242,191 25,719,668 834,185 57,739,006 152,535,050

At March 31, 2016 92,198,325 40,622,461 10,630,665 2,927,654 98,304,734 244,683,839

Addition 3,200,008 5,756,378 974,605 1,230,000 2,829,136 13,990,127

Disposals - 131,367 1,071,509 - 270,660 1,473,536

At March 31,2017 95,398,333 46,247,472 10,533,761 4,157,654 100,863,210 257,200,430

Depreciation =

At April 1, 2015 - 72,811,362 31,343,718 3,380,362 125,631,929 233,167,371

Charge for the year 11,307,267 4,298,345 448,751 143,791 11,102,067 27,300,221

Disposals 59,195,241 22,348,958 834,185 55,183,553 137,561,937

At March 31, 2016 11,307,267 17,914,466 9,443,511 2,689,968 81,550,443 122,905,655

Charge for the year 51,457,160 8,636,703 869,071 449,415 8,074,322 69,486,671

Disposals - 126,989 1,035,293 - 261,103 1,423,385

At March 31, 2017 62,764,427 26,424,180 9,277,289 3,139,383 89,363,662 190,968,941

Net Block

At March 31, 2016 80,891,058 22,707,995 1,187,154 237,686 16,754,291 121,778,184

At March 31, 2017 32,633,906 19,823,292 1,256,472 1,018,271 11,499,548 66,231,489

Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross block

At April 1, 2015 44,803,079 44,803,079

Addition 19,344,330 19,344,330

At March 31, 2016 64,147,409 64,147,409

Addition 14,788,138 14,788,138

At March 31, 2017 78,935,547 78,935,547

Amortization

At April 1,2015 31,530,813 31,530,813

Charge for the year 9,710,851 9,710,851

At March 31, 2016 41,241,664 41,241,664

Charge for the year 13,844,537 13,844,537

At March 31,2017 55,086,201 55,086,201

Net block

At March 31, 2016 22,905,744 22,905,744

At March 31,2017 23,849,346 23,849,346
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(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Non-current portion

Current portion

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)
4.9  Non-current investments
(Valued at cost unless otherwise stated)
Non-trade investments
Investments in equity instruments (unquoted)
100,000 (Previous year: 100,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
up in Alpha Micro Finance Consultants Private Limited
1,000,000 1,000,000
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
4.10 Loan portfolie
Joint liability group loans
Unsecured, considered good* 2,345,642,468 502,038,066 9,549,743,400 11,458,460,616
Unsecured, considered doubtful** 7,883,686,160 7,067,490,759 o -
10,229,328,628 7,569,528,825 9,549,743,400 11,458,460,616
Individual loans
Unsecured, considered good* 300,784 4,399,160 4,320,936 35,038,535
Unsecured, considered doubtful** 928,557,135 927,617,628 - -
Secured, considered good* 854,441 2,459,588 226,110,787 180,127,293
Secured, considered doubtful** 7,040,627 10,637,907 - =
936,752,987 945,114,283 230,431,723 215,165,828
Total 11,166,081,615 8,514,643,108 9,780,175,123 11,673,626,444
* Represents standard assets in accordance with Company's asset classification policy [refer note 3.2 (q)]
** Represents non-performing or sub-standard assets in accordance with Company's asset classification policy [refer note 3.2 (q)]
4.11 Loans and advances
A. Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 15,776,990 15,541,709 114,000
@A) 15,776,990 15,541,709 114,000 -
B. Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income tax (net of provision) 46,629,020 151,652,165 =
Advance with service provider 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 820,201
Prepaid expenses - - 2,152918 28,738
Advance against sum assured - 3,729,508 10,938,928
Capital advances - - - 181,545
Other advances 1,285,115 - 24,565,409 2,171,138
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Employee loans 1,701,241 1,905,153 -
Amounts deposited with courts 4,744,622 5,034,622
Other advances 15,047,892 10,170,315
Advance against sum assured 12,400,752 16,385,744 -
82,808,642 186,147,999 30,447,835 14,140,550
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (33,892,007) (30,913,529)
(B) 48,916,635 155,234,470 30,447,835 14,140,550
Total (A+B) 64,693,625 170,776,179 30,561,835 14,140,550
4.12  Other assets
Non-current bank balances (refer note 4.14) 22,613,512 20,878,017 -
Unamortized Ancillary borrowing costs - - - 19,477,762
Amount Receivabie from Banks 539,428 -
Interest accrued but not due on portfolio loans - 65,190,759 64,480,200
Interest accrued and due on portfolio loans - 9,112,368 2,358,572
Interest accrued on term deposits - - 468,044 571,339
22,613,512 20,878,017 75,310,599 86,887,873
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Notes to financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)
Non-current portion Current portion

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)

4.13 Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due

for payment
Unsecured, considered good - - 72,941 18,339,713
- - 72,941 18,339,713
4.14  Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
On current accounts - - 2,894,538,620 351,219,491
Cash on hand - - 6,630,318 2,044,870
- - 2,901,168,938 353,264,361
Other bank balances
Margin money deposit (refer note below) 22,613,512 20,878,017
22,613,512 20,878,017
Amount disclosed under non-current assets
(refer note 4.12) (22,613,512) (20,878,017) -
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SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(Rupees) (Rupees)

4.15 Revenue from operations
Interest income on portfolio loans 3,361,018,357 3,282,673,341

Other operating revenue

Loan processing fees [refer note 3.1 (b)] 341,905,044 148,161,219
Recovery against loans written off 10,401,052 6,012,773
Interest on margin money deposits 1,353,192 1,771,191

3,714,677,645 3,438,618,524

4.16 Other Income

Dividend from mutual funds 16,381,164 4,629,094
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 205,004 -
Liabilities no longer required, written back 447,855,614 1,246,242,139
Interest on income tax refund 9,854,604 3,460
Commission income 23,308,524 32,501,829
Miscellaneous income 5,956,619 5,011,900
503,561,528 1,288,388,422

4.17 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 556,176,488 546,508,632
Contribution to provident fund 12,474,751 12,422,205
Contribution to Employees State Insurance Corporation 1,608,382 2,108,602
Leave benefits 5,244,956 7,900,908
Gratuity expense (refer note 4.25) 5,200,986 (17,718)
Staff welfare expenses 2,254,038 1,949,588
582,959,601 570,872,217

4.18 Finance costs

Interest
On term loans from banks 1,152,062,166 1,035,998,400
On term loans from financial institutions 322,544,243 154,010,973
On term loans from non-banking financial companies - 52,236,458
Other finance cost [refer note 3.1 (a)] 254,744,483 44,441,238
CDR settlement expenses [refer note 2 (b)] 342,995,743 -
Bank charges ' 6,464,021 7,644,259

2,078,810,656 1,294,331,328




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

(Rupees) (Rupees)

4.19 Other expenses 5

Rent (refer note 4.26) 63,343,665 77,487,667
Rates and taxes 7,322,098 1,058,205
Office maintenance 13,696,063 16,729,379
Computers and network maintenance 2,261,609 2,996,306
Electricity charges 8,779,768 8,798,667
Travelling expenses 73,089,880 65,958,722
Communication expenses 6,937,948 12,361,729
Printing and stationery 7,984,224 7,491,935
Legal and professional charges 65,287,805 28,449,095
Directors sitting fees 1,427,500 1,159,000
Auditors remuneration (refer details below) 6,612,599 6,815,315
Recruitment and training 973,076 792,315
Subscription fees 7,092,351 2,457,792
Other provisions and write off 10,273,181 33,781,048
Security charges 3,293,952 7,301,314
Foreign exchange loss 33,856 350,871
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) - 9,458,637
Premium paid on portfolio purchase 8,559,725 71,161
Miscellaneous expenses 560,419 2,098,659
287,529,719 285,617,817

Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Audit fee 5,656,875 5,643,750
Certification fee 323,250 321,750
Out of pocket expenses 632,474 849,815
6,612,599 6,815,315
4.20 Provisions and write offs
Contingent provision against standard assets (refer note 4.27) (57,858,642) 109,267
Provision for non-performing assets (refer note 4.27) 455,336,926 (2,537,023,660)
Portfolio loans written off 22,802,863 2,643,736,159
420,281,147 106,821,766




SPANDANA SPHOORTY FINANCIAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

4.21 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 529,487,044 | 2,432,352,746
Less: Dividend on OCCRPS and tax thereon - (95,204)
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of basic earnings per share 529,487,044 | 2,432,257,542
Net profit/(loss) as above 529,487,044 | 2,432,257,542
Add: Dividend on OCCRPS and tax thereon - 95,204
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of diluted earnings per share 529,487,044 | 2,432,352,746
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 20,402,873 20,380,767
Effect of dilution

Conversion of OCCRPS 788,840,577 807,562,168
Conversion of Class A CCPS 12,798 -
Conversion of Class B CCPS 24,848 -
Conversion of OCRPS 25 -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 809,281,121 827,942,935
Basic earnings per share 25.95 119.34
Diluted earnings per share 0.65 2.94
Nominal value per share: Rs.10 (Previous year: Rs.10)

4.22 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and returns for the
purpose of AS 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

4.23 Related parties

1. Enterprises where key management personnel exercise significant influence
a) Spandana Rural and Urban Development Organization
b) Spandana Employees Welfare Trust
c) Spandana Mutual Benefit Trust
d) Spandana Sphoorty Chit Funds Private Limited
e) Criss Financial Holdings Limited
f) Abhiram Marketing Services Limited

2. Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Padmaja Gangireddy — Managing Director

Related party transactions during the year:

Sr. | Name of the Nature of transactions | Transactions | (Payable)/ | Transactions | (Payable)/
No | related party during Receivable during Receivable
FY 2016-17 31-Mar-17 FY 2015-16 | 31-Mar-16
1 | Spandana Rural and | Rent expense 7,997,244 (236,991) 7,354,719 (124,712)
Urban Development | Rent deposit - 3,089,586 217,836 3,089,586
Organization Expense reimbursement 4,382,982 4,360,866 107,931 (12,869)
Short term borrowing 10,000,281 | (10,000,281) - -
Interest expenses 16,439 (16,439)
Purchase of fixed asset 1,000,000 - - -
2 | Spandana Employees| Expense reimbursement 35,919 2,387 36,241 36,241
Welfare Trust
3 | Spandana Mutual Expense reimbursement 23,947 1,591 30,001 30,001
Benefit Trust
4 | Criss Financial Expense reimbursement 227,689 (280,244) 709,318 408,891
Holdings Limited Purchase of portfolio 178,089,724 - 7,352,420 -
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Sr. | Name of the Nature of transactions | Transactions | (Payable)/ | Transactions | (Payable)/
No | related party during Receivable during Receivable
FY 2016-17 | 31-Mar-17 FY 2015-16 | 31-Mar-16

5 | Abhiram Marketing | Rent income - - 1,699,491 -
Services Limited Commission income 23,308,524 - 32,501,829 16,010,219
Purchase of stationery - - 3,628,953 (639,329)
Expense reimbursement 1,561,009 14,722 5,003,135 2,498,349

Purchase of fixed assets 1,002,635 - 1,669,959 (41,234)
6 | Mrs. Padmaja Rent paid 320,065 - 574,204 (70,010)
Gangireddy Remuneration” 27,843,750 | (2,729,450) 27,843,750 | (37,23,950)

Rent Deposit Paid - 114,000 - 114,000

Note: Transactions during the yearare shown net of service tax and inclusive of TDS.

*Provision for gratuity is made for the Company as a whole and accordingly, the amount pertaining to the Key
Management Personnel is not specifically identified and hence not included above.

424 Contingent liabilities not provided for

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(a) Claims against Company not acknowledge as debts:
Service tax open assessments 49,236,798 48,666,369
(b) Dividend payable on OCCRPS and tax there on
(i) Arrears of dividend on OCCRPS not provided for
-FY 2012-13 - 94,060
-FY 2013-14 - 90,533
-FY 2014-15 - 83,424
-FY 2015-16 - 79,101
(ii) Tax on OCCRPS dividend - 47,075
Total 49,236,798 49,060,562

4.25 Employee benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service is eligible for gratuity,on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days salary (last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service subject to limit of Rs.1,000,000. The scheme is funded with an
insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy. Following tables summarize the components of
net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized

in the Balance Sheet for the gratuity plan.
Change in defined benefit obligation

Particulars

For the year

For the year ended

endedMarch 31, March 31, 2016
2017

Opening defined benefit obligation 15,701,587 21,113,905
Current service cost 2.718.223 1,853,241
Interest cost 1,193,321 1,689,112
Actuarial loss/(Gain) 3,392,845 (3,543,421)
Benefits paid (3,830,753) (5,411,250)
Closing defined benefit obligation 19,175,223 15,701,587

Change in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Opening fair value of plan assets 14,923,134 20,246,772
Expected return on plan assets 1,193,808 1,615,109
Actuarial gains 909,062 (1,527,497)
Employer contributions - -
Benefits paid (3,830,753) (5,411,250)
Closing fair value of plan assets 13,195,251 14,923,134

The Company expects to contribute Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil) to gratuity in the next year.

I,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet
Details of provision for gratuity:

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Present value of funded obligations 19,175,223 15,701,587
Fair value on plan assets 13,195,251 14,923,134
Net (liability)/asset (5,979,972) (778,453)
Statement of profit and loss

Net employees benefit expense (recognized in employees benefit expense):

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Current service cost 2,718,223 1,853,241
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1,193,321 1,689,112
Expected return on plan assets (1,193,808) (1,544,148)
Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in the year 2,483,250 (2,015,924)
Amount included in Personnel expenses 5,200,986 (17,718)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Category of Assets March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Investment with insurer 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
Summary of Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Discount rate 7.00% 7.60%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 7.60%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 13.00% 10.00%
Retirement age (years) 58 60

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at

the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered taking into account the inflation,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows

Particulars March 31, | March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Defined benefit obligation 19,175,223 | 15,701,587 21,113,905 8,305,367 | 10,318,383
Fair valueofplan assets 13,195,251 | 14,923,134 20,246,772 | 21,860,997 | 23,793,267
Surplus/(deficit) in the plan (5,979,972) (778,453) (867,133) | 13,555,630 | 13,474,884
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities | (3,392,845) 3,543,421 | (10,749,077) (931,271) {(14,995,954)
Experience adjustments on plan assets 909,595 | (1,527,497) 31,817 (345,737) 810,911

4.26 Leases

Operating lease where the Company is a lessee
Head office and branch office premises are acquired on operating lease. The branch office premises are
generally rented on cancellable term ofeleven months with or without escalation clause, however none of the
branch lease agreement carries non-cancellable lease periods. The head office premises have been obtained on a
lease term of nine years with an escalation clause of fifteen percentat a three years interval. There are no non-

cancellable sub-leases.
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(Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Lease payments during the year are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Operating lease payments recognized during the year 63,343,665 77,487,667
Minimum lease obligations
Not later than one year 14,679,866 13,410,588
Later than one year and not later than five years 5,691,151 20,371,017
Later than five years - -
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Sub-lease lease payments recognized during the year - 1,699,491

Sub-lease payments received (or receivable) are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

4.27 Loan portfolio and provision for standard and non-performing assets:

(Rupees in Crore)

GOmSlIoLoan Provision for standard &non-performing assets Roniiolio. oAk
i d outstanding(Gross) outstanding(Net)
Asset Classification Mar-17 Mar-16 | Mar-16 | Addition | Written back Mar-17 | Mar-17 | Mar-16
FY 16-17 FY 16-17

Unsecured

Standard 1,190.00 1,199.99 12.00 - 5.81 6.19 1,183.81 1,187.99
Non-performing” 881.22 799.51 799.29 47.37 1.84 844.82 36.40 0.22
Sub Total(A) 2,071.22 1,999.50 811.29 47.37 7.65 851.01 1,220.21 |  1,188.21
Secured

Standard 22.70 18.26 0.05 0.02 - 0.07 22.63 18.20
Sub-standard 035 0.38 0.04 0.03 0.01 0.34 0.35
Doubtful 0.35 0.68 0.22 0.33 0.30 0.25 0.10 0.46
Sub Total(B) 23.40 19.32 0.31 0.35 0.33 0.33 23.07 19.01
Total(A+B) [ 2,09462 ] 2,0188 [ 811.60 | 47.72 | 798 | 85134 | 1,243.28 | 1,207.22

“Includes an additional provision of Rs.41.28 crore(March 31, 2016: Nil) for loans which, in the opinion of the
Company, are not recoverable. Such provision in accordance with the Company’s provisioning policy as defined

under Note 3.2 (r).

(Rupees in Crore)

Category of loan portfolio Portfolio Loan Provision for standard & Portfolio Loan
outstanding (Gross) non-performing assets outstanding(Net)
Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16
Portfolio in states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana
Disbursed prior to Jan 1, 2012 797.55 799.29 797.21 799.29 0.34 -
Disbursed post Jan 1, 2012(including Gold Loans) 44.73 27.60 0.23 0.34 44.50 27.26
Portfolio in other states 1,252.34 1191.93 53.90 11.97 | 1,198.44 1,179.96
Total 2,094.62 2,018.82 851.34 811.60 | 1,243.28 1,207.22

4.28 Amounts payable to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED”) pertaining to micro or small enterprises.

For the year ended March 31, 2017, no supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or small
enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED.
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4.29 Additional information required by RBI

a. Capital te risk assets ratio (‘CRAR’)

Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
CRAR (%) 48.96% -18.61%
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%) 48.52% -18.61%
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%) 0.44% -

The modifications to the NBFC-MFI directions issued by RBI vide its circular no.RBI/2012-13/161 DNBS (PD)
CC.No0.300 /03.10.038/2012-13 dated August 3, 2012 have specified that provision made towards the loan
portfolio in the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana (originated prior to January 1, 2012) should be added
back notionally to the net owned funds for the purpose of calculation of the capital to risk assets ratio (‘CRAR”)
and should be progressively reduced by 20% each year, over 5 years i.e. from March 31, 2013 to March 31,
2017. Accordingly, 20% of such provisioning has been notionally reckoned as a part of net own funds.

b. Exposure to real estate sector

Category Year ended Year ended
March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
A | Direct exposure
I | Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is 1,973,026 5,604,930

or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
II | Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial realestates (office - -
buildings, retail space, multipurpose Commercial premises,
multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, cte.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits.

III | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) andother
securitised exposures -

Residential - -
Commercial Real Estate = =
B | Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing -
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).
Total

1,973,026 5,604,930

¢. Outstanding of loans against security of gold as a percentage to total assets is 1.08% (Previous year: 0.89%)
d. The Company has no exposure to capital market.
e. Asset liability management

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2017:

(Rupees in Crore)

Particulars Uptol | 1to2 2to3 3to6 | 6months | 1to3 3to5 | Over5 | Total

month | months [ months | months | to 1 year years years | years
Liabilities
Borrowings from banks 4.92 4.92 492 | 13443 268.86 | 537.73 - 955.78
Market borrowings - - - - - - -
Foreign currency liabilities - - - - - - - - -
Assets
Advances * 152.67 | 148.72 | 126.50 | 297.69 255.28 1,259.07
Investments - . - 0.10
Foreign currency assets - - - -

* Net of provision towards non-performing loans and advances.
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2016:
(Rupees in Crore)

Particulars Uptol | 1to2 2to3 3to6 | 6 months | 1to3 3toS |OverS Total
month | months | months | months | to 1 year | vyears years | years

Liabilities

Borrowings from banks” - - - | 755.30 - - - - 755.30

Market borrowings# - - - | 163.49 - - - - 163.49

Foreign currency liabilities - 0.26 - - - - - - 0.26

Assets

Advances * 149.17 [ 141.76 | 134.00 | 334.64 409.53 66.135 2.58 - | 1,237.84

Investments - - - - - - 0.10 0.10

Foreign currency assets = = 2 = - - - =

* Net of provision towards non-performing loans and advances
"Borrowings were considered as current maturities in view of the settlement proposed during the year ended
March 31, 2016 (refer note 4.3) and completed on March 30, 2017.

f. Information on instances of fraud

Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2017:

Nature of fraud No. of cases | Amount of fraud Recovery * Amount provided
Cash Embezzlement 30 487,035 485,745 1,290
Fake Loans 8 4,292,022 264,590 4,027,432

*Includes recoveries in respect of frauds reported in earlier years

Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2016:

Nature of fraud No. of cases | Amount of fraud Recovery * Amount provided
Cash Embezzlement 69 1,816,180 469,114 1,347,066
Fake Loans 10 4,042,118 264,982 3,777,136

* Includes recoveries in respect of frauds reported in earlier years
g. The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.

h. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

(Rupees in crore)
Instrument Name of the | Date of | Rating Valid up to | Borrowing limit or
rating agency | rating assigned conditions imposed by
rating agency

No rating has been obtained in the current year

Previous Year (Rupees in crore)
Instrument Name of the | Date of | Rating Valid up to Borrowing limit or
rating rating assigned conditions imposed by
agency rating agency
Long-Term Debt | CRISIL 12-Aug-15 | CRISILD | 11-Aug-2016 1750.00

i. Disclosure of complaints

Particulars No. of complaints
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 24

No. of complaints received during the year 672

No. of complaints redressed during the year 685

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 11
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j-  Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016

Concentration of Advances

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 1.79 2.20

(%) of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 0.09% 0.11%.
Concentration of Exposures

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers 1.89 2.23

(%) of exposure to twenty largest borrowers to total exposure 0.09% 0.11%
Concentration of NPAs

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 0.12 0.14

k. Sector wise NPAs

Sector Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Agriculture and allied activities 46.64% 47%
MSME 42.23% 36%
Corporate borrowers 0% 0%
Services 32.24% 31%
Unsecured personal loans 0% 0%
Auto loans 32.01% 30%
Other personal loans 47.85% 48%

Non-performing assets include amount of Rs.797.22 crore (Previous year: Rs.799.29crore) representing
portfolio in the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana originated prior to January 1, 2012 which has been fully

provided for.

l.  Movement of NPAs

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.59% 0.08%
Movement of NPAs (gross)
1. Opening balance 800.57 1063.08
2. Additions during the year 83.56 5.62
3. Reductions during the year (2.21) (268.13)
4. Closing balance 881.92 800.57
Movement of Net NPAs - -
1. Opening balance 1.02 9.90
2. Additions during the year 35.89 5.37
3. Reductionsduring the year (0.08) (14.24)
4. Closing balance 36.83 1.03
Movement of provision for NPAs (excl. standard assets) - -
1. Opening balance 799.55 1053.25
2. Provisions made during the year 47.64 0.19
3. Write off/ write back of excess provisions .11 (253.89)
4. Closing balance 845.08 799.55

Non-performing assets include amount of Rs.797.22 crore (Previous year:

provided for, °

Rs.799.29crore) representing
portfolio in the states of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana originated prior to January 1, 2012 which has been fully

m. There has been no drawdown from reserves during the year except as disclosed in note 4.2.
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n. Investments:
(Rupees in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(1) | Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments
(a) InIndia 0.10 0.10
(b) Outside India -
(ii) | Provision for depreciation
(a) In India -
(b) Outside India
(iii) | Net value of investments
(a) InIndia 0.10 0.10
(b) Outside India - -
(2) | Movement of provisions held towards deprecation
(i) Opening balance - -
(i) | Add: Provision made during the year - -
(iii) | Less: Write oft/ write back - -
(iv) | Closing balance - -

0. Details of financial assets sold to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction:
The Company has not sold financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction companies for asset
reconstruction in the current and previous year.

p. Details of assignment transactions undertaken:

The Company has not undertaken assignment transactions in the current and previous year.

q- Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold:

The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financial assets in the current and previous year.

r. Details of financing of parent company products:

This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding / parent Company.

s. Unsecured Advances — Refer note 4.10

t. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:

The Company is registered with the ‘Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ (Financial regulators as described by
Ministry of Finance)
u. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year. Amounts paid as fees
for compounding of offences under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, referred to in note 4.1
(f) and 4.2, have not been considered for disclosure under this note.
v. Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit and loss)
(Rupees in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Provision for income tax (net) 23.58 -
Provision for non-performing assets 45.53 (253.70)
Provision for standard assets (5.79) 0.01
Provision for unfructified service tax liability 0.70 2.04
Provision for theft & fraud 0.49 0.62
Provision for gratuity 0.52 (0.01)
Provision for leave benefits 0.52 0.79
Provision for insurance claims (0.14) 0.15
Provision for employee loans (0.02) (0.01)
Provision for bonus 1.14 1.72
ZTUB0I N
D)\
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w. Un-hedged foreign currency

The Company has un-hedged foreign currency exposure in respect of:

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
USD INR USD INR
Creditors for purchase of assets - - 39,464 2,617,762

X. Information on Net Interest Margin

Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
(%) (%)
Average interest charged 16.00 14.57
Average cost of borrowing * 16.31 13.26
Net interest margin -0.31 1.31

* Does not include CDR settlement expenditure incurred during the current year (refer note 4.18).

430 The Company has certain litigations pending with income tax authorities, service tax authorities and
other litigations which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company has reviewed all
such pending litigations having an impact on the financial position, and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liability (refer note 4.24) where applicable in
the financial statements.

4.31 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted by the Company during the period
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016:

(Rupees in Crore)

Particulars SBNs Other Total
denomination
notes
Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 0.38 0.38 0.76
(+) Permitted receipts [refer Note (a) below] - 294.56 294.56
(+) Non-permitted receipts [refer Note (b) below] 56.41 : 56.41
() Permitted payments[refer Note (c) below] = 197.58 197.58
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 56.79 92.82 149.61
Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 4.54 4.54
Notes:

a. Permitted receipts in other denomination notes include collections made by the Company from its
loan borrowers and withdrawals from bank accounts during the period from November 9, 2016 to
December 30, 2016 in the ordinary course of business.

b. Represent collections in Specified Bank Notes made by the Company from its loan borrowers from
November 9, 2016 to December 30, 2016. These amounts were collected against the borrowers’
regular loan obligations which had fallen due in the ordinary course of business and were
deposited into bank account of the Company.

c. Permitted payments in other denomination notes include disbursement of loans to its borrowers
and other cash payments in the ordinary course of business.
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4.32 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s
classification.
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ANNEXURE VI: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

Hustration of Bond Cash Flows — Series A Debentures

Company Spandana S"pl_ioorty Financial Limited
Face Value (per security) Re. | /- (RupeeOne only)

[ssue Date October 25,2017

Date of Allotment October 26, 2017

Redemption October 26,2020

Coupon Rate 12.30% (Twelve Decimal Point Three Zero)

Frequency of the Coupon Payment with specified dates Monthly. Dates specified below

Day Count Convention Actual / Actual

Cash Flows Date Coupon Amount (in Rupees) Principal Amount (in
Rupees)
Issue amount 26 October 2017 18,00,00,000
1st Coupon 15 November 2017 1,273,808 -
2nd Coupon 15 December 2017 1,819,726 -
3rd Coupon 15 January 2018 1,880,384 -
4th Coupon 15 February 2018 1,880,384 -
5th Coupon 15 March 2018 1,698,411 -
6th Coupon 16 April 2018 1,880,384 -
7th Coupon 15 May 2018 1,819,726 -
8th Coupon 15 June 2018 1,880,384 = |
9th Coupon 16 July 2018 1,819,726 -
10th Coupon 15 August 2018 1,880,384 | -
11th Coupon 17 September 2018 1,880,384 - W
12th Coupon 15 October 2018 1,819,726 -
| 13thCoupon | 15 November 2018 1,880,384 -
14th Coupon 17 December 2018 1,819,726 -
15th Coupon 15 January 2019 1,880,384 -
16th Coupon 15 February 2019 1,880,384 - ]
17th Coupon 15 March 2019 1,698,411 -
18th Coupon 15 April 2019 1,880,384 -
19th Coupon 15 May 2019 1,819,726 -
20th Coupon 17 June 2019 1,880,384 -
21st Coupon 15 July 2019 [ 1,819,726 -
22nd Coupon 15 August 2019 1,880,384 -
23rd Coupon 16 September 2019 1,880,384 -
24th Coupon B 15 October 2019 1,819,726 -
25th Coupon 15 November 2019 1,880,384 ;
26th Coupon 16 December 2019 1,819,726 -
27th Coupon 15 January 2020 1,877,898 I -
28th Coupon 17 February 2020 1,875,246 .
29th Coupon 16 March 2020 1,754,262 -
30th Coupon 15 April 2020 | 1,875,246 -
31st Coupon 15 May 2020 1,814,754 -
32nd Coupon 15 June 2020 1,875,246 -
33rd Coupon 15 July 2020 1,814,754 -
34th Coupon 17 August 2020 1,875,246 -
35th Coupon 15 September 2020 1,875,246 -
36th Coupon 26 October 2020 2,480,164 18,00,00,000
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